
The Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka
(Published by Authority)

PART I : SECTION (I) – GENERAL
(Separate paging is given to each language of every Part in order that it may be filed separately)

			   Page

Government Notifications	 …	 …	 662
Price Control Orders	 …	 …	 —
Central Bank of Sri Lanka Notices…	 …	 —
Accounts of the Government of Sri Lanka	 …	 —	
Revenue and Expenditure Returns…	 …	 663	
Miscellaneous Departmental Notices	 …	 680
Notice to Mariners	 …	 …	 —
“Excise Ordinance” Notices	 …	 …	 — 

YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h

wxl 2"224 – 2021 wfm%a,a ui 16 jeks isl=rdod – 2021'04'16
No. 2,224 – friday, April 16, 2021

Important  Notice  Regarding  Acceptance  of  Notices 
For  Publication  in  the  Weekly  “Gazette”

Attention is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance of Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of publication. 
All Government Departments, corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times of applications in 
respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared by giving adequate time 
both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those interested in the contents of such 
notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect of corrections pertaining to notification will 
not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All Notices to be published in the weekly Gazette should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e. Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazette of 07th May, 2021 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 23rd April, 2021.

Electronic Transactions Act, No. 19 of  2006 - Section 9
“Where any Act or enactment provides that any proclamation, rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other matter shall be 

published in the Gazette, then such requirement shall be deemed to have been satisfied if such rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other 
matter is published in an electronic form of the Gazette.”

	 Gangani Liyanage,
	 Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing, 
Colombo 08,
01st January, 2021.

  This Gazette can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk

	 		   Page

Proclamations, &c., by the President	 …	 —
Appointments, &c., by the President	 …	 —
Appointments, &c., by the Cabinet of Ministers  	 …	 —
Appointments, &c., by the Public Service Commission	 —
Appointments, &c., by the Judicial Service Commission	 —
Other Appointments, &c.          …	 …	 —
Appointments, &c., of  Registrars	 …	 —

661- B 82222 - 423 (04/2021)



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'04'16

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 16.04.2021
662

Government Notifications
registrar  general’s  department

Registration B 96.
	 (E2) 2/64.

certificate of registry of building for the solemnization of marriages

	Certificate Number : 1520.

In pursuance to the application and declaration made is under Section 10 of the Marriage Registration Ordinance, (Chapter 
112) I, Karagoda Gamage Dharmathilaka, Registrar General of Sri Lanka, do hereby certify that the under mentioned 
building is used as a place of Public Christian Worship, described below, has been duly registered for the solemnization of 
marriages.

	 Situation

	 Description	 Village or	 Pattu.	 District	 Proprietors of	 Religious
		  street and	 Korale or		  Trustees	 Denomination
		  Division of	 other			   on whose
		  town	 Division of			   behalf of the
			   the District			   building in
						      Registered

Assembly of	 Pussellawa	 Gampola	 Kandy	 Rev. Kandan	 Assemblies of
God					     Chandramohan		  God of Ceylon
Pussellawa			 

Witness my hand at Battaramulla, this 09th day of December, 2020.

	 K. G. Dharmathilaka,
	 Registrar General.

04-436/1

registrar  general’s  department

Registration B 97
(F2) 2/64.

Registration of Place of worship for solemnization of marriages
	
In pursuance to the provisions under Section 10 of the Marriage Registration Ordinance (Chapter 112) I, Karagoda Gamage 
Dharmathilaka, Registrar General of Sri Lanka, do hereby inform Notify that the under mentioned building used as a place 
of Public Christian Worship, has been duly registered for the solemnization of marriage therein.
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	 Number	 Date of	 Description	 Situation	 Minister of	 Religious
		  Registration			   Proprietor or 	 Denomination
					     Trustee	 on whose
						      behalf of the
						      building in
						      Registered

	 1520	 24.08.2020	 Assembly of	 Pussellawa	 Rev. Kandan	 Assemblies of
			   God Pussellawa		  Chandramohan	 God of Ceylon

	 K. G. Dharmathilaka,
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3, Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla,
09th December, 2020.

04-436/2

Revenue and Expenditure Returns

S W R D  BANDARANAIKE  NATIONAL  MEMORIAL  FOUNDATION

Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December, 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT OF S W R D BANDARANAIKE 
NATIONAL MEMORIAL FOUNDATION

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation (“the Foundation”), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the statement of income and expenditure, 
statement of changes in funds, statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Foundation 
as at 31 December 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Foundation in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of 
Ethics) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Board of Management is responsible for the other information. These financial statements do not comprise other 
information.
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S W R D BANDARANAIKE NATIONAL MEMORIAL FOUNDATION

Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with SLFRS for SMEs, and for such internal control as Board of Management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Management is responsible for assessing the Foundation’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless Board of Management either intends to liquidate the Foundation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Foundation’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at Sri Lanka 
Accounting and Auditing Standards website at: http://slaasc.com/auditing/auditorsresponsibility.php. This description 
forms part of our auditor’s report.

Chartered Accountants.

Colombo, Sri Lanka,
23rd February, 2021.

2.1 1,003,459,376 955,632,596
2.2 9,836,051 14,125,206
2.3 - -

690,862 -
3 899,670 1,157,316

4.1 48,827,855 40,431,781

1,063,713,814 1,011,346,899

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment (Freehold)
Property, plant and equipment (CHOGM)
Leasehold assets
Work in progress
Intangible assets
Non-current financial assets
Total non-current assets

		  2019	 2018
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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		  2019	 2018
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.

Current assets
Inventory
Trade and other receivables
Short term investments
Deposits, prepayment and advances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Funds and liabilities

Funds
Capital reserve
Capital aid fund
CHOGM fund
S W R D Bandaranaike fund (Accumulated fund)

Non-current liabilities
Finance lease obligations
Retirement benefits obligation

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses
Finance lease obligations
Bank overdraft

Total liabilities

Total funds and liabilities

The financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these financial 
statements of the Foundation.

I certify that these financial statements are prepared in accordance with SLFRS for SMEs.

	 ........................	 ........................
	 Assistant Accountant.	 Chief Executive/Director.

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements of accordance 
with SLFRS for SMEs.

Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Board :

	 ........................	 ........................
	 Chairperson	 Board Member

Colombo,
23rd February, 2021.

5 23,695,331 19,052,039
6 145,750,117 171,072,690
7 2,227,259,871 1,751,518,311
8 69,348,925 16,773,845
9 163,426,589 110,931,021

2,629,480,833 2,069,347,906
3,693,194,647 3,080,694,805

10
10

11.1 - 333,298
12 64,036,021 67,736,213

64,036,021 68,069,511

13 176,548,287 141,703,295
14 98,422,220 121,481,460

11.2 - 4,493,831
9 10,467,435 5,362,786

285,437,942 273,041,372
349,473,963 341,110,883

3,693,194,647 3,080,694,805

         925,522	 925,522
  343,466,778	 354,044,574
      9,836,050	 14,125,206
2,989,492,334	 2,370,488,620
3,343,720,684	 2,739,583,922
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As at 31 December,	 2019	 2018

Income 15 1,305,295,910 1,140,542,968

Direct operating expenses (487,488,645) (466,197,000)

Gross surplus 817,807,265 674,345,968

Other income 16 37,307,434 78,202,115
Administrative expenses (205,951,474) (215,380,104)
Marketing expenses (17,559,723) (11,047,511)

Finance expenses 17 (789,580) (1,263,586)

Other expenses 18 (11,810,208) (13,248,702)

Surplus before tax expense 19 619,003,714 511,608,180 

Income tax expense - -

Surplus after tax expense 619,003,714 511,608,180 

S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Statement of Income and Expenditure

For the year ended 31st December	 Note	 2019	 2018
			   Rs. 	 Rs.

The financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes,  which form an integral  part of these 
financial statements of the Foundation.

Balance as at 01 January 2018	 925,522	 1,858,880,440	 364,622,370	 21,570,887	 2,245,999,219

Surplus for the year	 -	 511,608,180	 -	 -	 511,608,180
Utilised during the year	 -	 -	 (10,577,796)	 (7,445,681)	 (18,023,477)

Balance as at  31 December 2018	 925,522	 2,370,488,620	 354,044,574	 14,125,206	 2,739,583,922

Surplus for the year	 -	 619,003,714	 -	 -	 619,003,714
Utilised during the year	 -	 -	 (10,577,796)	 (4,289,156)	 (14,866,952)

Balance as at  31 December 2019	 925,522	 2,989,492,334	 343,466,778	 9,836,050	 3,343,720,684

 

S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Statement of Changes in Funds

For the year ended 31st December,	 Capital	 S. W. R. D.	 Capital aid	 CHOGM	 Total
	 Reserve	 Bandaranaike	 fund	 fund
		  fund
		  (Accumulated	
		  Fund)
	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.

The financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these financial 
statements of the Foundation.
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For the year ended 31st December, Note 2019
Rs.

2018
Rs.

Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus before tax expense

Adjustments for non-cash income and expenses:

619,003,714 511,608,180

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 56,212,985 69,559,809

Amortization of intangible assets 257,645 258,823

Interest income (229,590,587) (168,110,702)

Provision for retiring gratuity 4,254,256 12,180,453

Reversal of over provision for other receivables - (36,102,513)

Provision / write off of debtors 10,589,835 6,139,394

WHT write off - 5,417,124

Gain on disposal of property ,plant and equipment (1,451,363) (3,502,572)

Lease interest 228,390 835,722

Operating profit before working capital changes 459,504,875 398,283,718

Changes in;

Inventories (4,643,292) (6,420,197)

Trade and other receivables 14,732,739 (22,429,287)

Deposits, prepayments, advances and other (52,575,080) 7,372,262

Trade payables, other payables and accruals 11,785,752 (955,606)

Net cash flow from operations 428,804,994 375,850,890

Gratuity paid (7,954,448) (5,564,997)

Net cash generated from operating activities 420,850,546 370,285,893

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest income received 174,868,814 125,623,105

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (99,836,270) (44,246,687)

Purchase of intangible assets - (44,370)

Net investments in fixed deposits (421,019,787) (434,051,970)

Investment in WIP (690,862) -

Proceed from disposal of fixed assets and consumables 1,537,024 5,646,016

(Increase)/decrease in staff loan (8,396,074) 597,360

Net cash used in investing activities (353,537,155) (346,476,546)

S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation
Statement of Cash Flows



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'04'16

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 16.04.2021
668

For the year ended 31st December, Note 2019
Rs.

2018
Rs.

Cash flows from financing activities

Decrease in specific funds (14,866,952) (18,023,477)

Lease rental paid during the year (5,055,520) (5,550,198)

Net cash used in financing activities (19,922,472) (23,573,675)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents                 
47,390,919

235,672

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 105,568,235 105,332,563

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year        9 152,959,154 105,568,235
	
The financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these financial 
statements of the Foundation.

S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. Accounting policies

	 1.1   Reporting entity

S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation (“the Foundation”) is established under S W R D 
Bandaranaike Foundation Law No. 2 of 1975 of the National State Assembly. The registered office and principal 
place of operation is situated at Bauddhaloka Mawatha, Colombo 07.

Principle activities and nature of operations

S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Principle activities of the Foundation are to promote international peace, understanding and co-operation and to 
promote the study and discussion of international problems in the economic, political, educational, cultural and 
social fields and the dissemination of knowledge on international affairs and renting out premises for offices and 
hiring of the halls for public use.

Bandaranaike Center for International Studies

Principle activities of the Centre are to encourage and promote the studies of research into all aspect of international 
relations, international peace law and diplomacy.

1.2    Basis of preparation

	 (a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Foundation comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, 
statement of income and expenditure, statement of changes in funds, statement of cash flows and notes to the 
financial statements.
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Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. No adjustments have been made for 
inflationary factors in the financial statements.

	 (b)	 Functional and presentation currency
		T  hese financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR), which is the Foundation’s functional 

currency.

	 (c)	 Use of estimates and judgements

		T  he preparation of financial statements in conformity with SLFRS for SMEs requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which 
form the basis of making the judgment about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

		T  he estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only the financial year or in the 
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future financial years.

1.3   Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial 
statements.

	 (a)	 Foreign currency transactions

		T  ransactions in foreign currencies are translated to rupees at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to 
rupees at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation 
are recognized in the statement of income and expenditure.

	 (b)	 Property, plant and equipment

	 (i)	 Recognition and measurement

		I  tems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

		  Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and bringing the assets to its 
working condition.

		  Gains/losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised net within “other 
income” in the statement of income and expenditure.

	 (ii)	 Depreciation
		  Depreciation is recognized in the statement of income and expenditure on a straight-line method for S W R D 

Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation and CHOGM fund over the estimated useful lives of the asset.
		T  he depreciation rate of assets for the current and comparative periods are as follows:



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'04'16

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 16.04.2021
670

S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Depreciation rate

Building 2%
Library books 20%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicle 25%
Furniture and fitting 20%
Conference system 12.5%
Other equipment 20%
Carpet and curtain 33.3%
Crockery and cutlery 20%
Electrical equipment 20%
Linen 12.5%
Container 10%
Roads 10%
Stalls 10%

CHOGM 2013 Fund Assets
Depreciation rate

Hybrid building
SBMEC hall building

3%
2%

PVC covers 50%
Motor vehicle 25%
Furniture and fitting 20%

	 (c)	 Intangible asset

		  Computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire and bring to use specific 
software. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful life of eight years on reducing balance method.

	 (d)	 Leased assets

		  Property, plant and equipment on finance leases, (which effectively transfer to the Foundation substantially 
the entire risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items) are capitalized at their cash price and 
depreciated/amortized over the period the Foundation is expected to benefit from the use of the leased assets. The 
corresponding principal amount payable to the lessor is shown as a liability.

		T  he interest element of the rental obligation applicable to each financial year is charged to the statement of 
income and expenditure over the period of the lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

	 (e)	 Inventories

		I  nventories are valued at the cost. The cost of inventories is based on the first in first out principle, and includes 
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing 
location and condition.

	 (f)	 Investments

		  Short term investments in treasury bills and fixed deposits are valued at amortized cost.
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	 (g)	 Trade and other receivables

		  Other receivables are carried at anticipated realizable value. An estimate is made for bad and doubtful receivables 
based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end.

	 (h)	 Cash and cash equivalents

		  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with bank.
		F  or the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call 

with bank, and net of bank overdrafts. In the statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are included in current 
liabilities.

		  Statement of cash flows
		  Statement of cash flows has been prepared using the indirect method.

	 (i)	 Impairment

		T  he carrying amounts of the Foundation’s non-financial assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.

		  An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognised in statement of income and expenditure.

	 (j)	 Liabilities and provisions

		  Liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when there is a present obligation as a result of 
past events, the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits. 
Obligations payable at the demand of the creditors or within one year of the reporting date are treated as current 
liabilities in the statement of financial position. Liabilities payable after one year from the reporting date are treated 
as non-current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

		  A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Foundation has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation.

	 (k)	 Specifics funds

		  Where funds are received for use in an identified activity, such funds are held in a specific fund account and 
transferred to the Statement of income and expenditure to match with expenses incurred in respect of that identified 
activity. Unutilized funds are held in their respective fund accounts and included in the Statement of financial 
position until such time as they are required.

	 (l)	 Taxation 
		  Income taxation

		T  he Foundation is exempt from income tax under the Inland Revenue act No: 24 of 2017.
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	 (m)	 Employee benefits

	 i.	 Defined benefit plan

		T  he Foundation’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is measured annually using the projected unit credit 
method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future benefit 
that employee have earned in return for their services in the current and prior period.

		  Gains and losses arising from changes in the assumptions, current service cost and interest are recognized in the 
statement of income and expenditure in the period in which they arise.

		  Provision is made for retirement gratuity for all employees in respect of gratuity payable under the Payment of 
Gratuity Act No.12 of 1983. The provision is not invested in a fund outside the Foundation. The provision is not 
externally funded, nor has it been valued by an actuary. This item is grouped under noncurrent liabilities in the 
statement of financial position.

	 ii.	 Defined contribution plan.

		  Obligations to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the income statement as incurred. The 
Foundation contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments of employees as Provident Fund and Trust Fund 
contribution respectively.

	 (n)	 Revenue
		  Revenue recognition

		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Foundation and 
the revenue and associated cost incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and turnover taxes.

	 (o)	 Expenses

		  All expenditure incurred in the operations of the Foundation and in maintaining the capital assets in a state of 
efficiency have been charged in arriving at the Foundation’s surplus for the year.

	 (p)	F inance expense

		F  inance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, bank charges and debit tax. All borrowing cost are 
recognised in statement of income and expenditure.

	 (q)	 Comparative information
		  Where necessary, comparative figures have been rearranged to confirm with the current year’s presentation.

	 (r)	 Events occurring after the reporting date

		  All material post reporting events have been considered and where appropriate adjustments or disclosures have been 
made in respective notes to the financial statements.

	 (s)	 Commitments and contingencies

		  Contingencies are possible assets or obligations that arise from a past event and would be confirmed only on the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future events, which are beyond the Foundation’s control.

		  Commitments and contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements.
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Cost Balance as at 01
January 2019

Additions Disposals Balance as at 31
December 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Building 971,501,608 - - 971,501,608

Plant and machinery 12,100,000 82,415,109 - 94,515,109

Motor vehicles 40,206,807 - - 40,206,807

Other equipment 26,509,697 1,772,994 (22,000) 28,260,691

Furniture and fittings 54,816,997 3,639,072 (498,950) 57,957,119

Carpets and curtains 3,010,641 1,294,557 (136,342) 4,168,856

Crockery and cutlery 226,553 - - 226,553

Electrical equipment 78,824,419 10,225,207 (561,758) 88,487,868

Container 960,862 - - 960,862

Road account 33,043,308 489,331 - 33,532,639

Stalls 4,962,395 - - 4,962,395

1,226,163,287 99,836,270 (1,219,050) 1,324,780,507

Accumulated depreciation Balance as at 01
January 2019

Depreciation
for the year

Depreciation
on disposals

Balance as at 31
December 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Building 94,900,873 19,866,953 - 114,767,826

Plant and machinery 4,224,306 2,068,491 - 6,292,796

Motor vehicles 39,310,504 798,750 - 40,109,254

Other equipment 13,703,751 4,962,902 (20,240) 18,646,413

Furniture and fittings 36,624,221 11,876,207 (433,941) 48,066,487

Carpets and curtains 2,061,776 580,759 (169,607) 2,472,929

Crockery and cutlery 240,350 - - 240,350

Electrical equipment 54,663,533 8,430,136 (509,602) 62,584,067

Container 960,862 - - 960,862

Road account 18,878,120 3,339,632 - 22,217,752

Stalls 4,962,395 - - 4,962,395

270,530,691 51,923,830 (1,133,390) 321,321,131

    Net book value 955,632,596 1,003,459,376

2.1    Property, plant and equipment - Freehold assets
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Cost Balance as at	 Additions	 Disposals		  Balance as at 
01 January			   31 December

       2019	 2019
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

PVC Covers 4,924,368 - - 4,924,368
Block xi/x2/x3/x4 Hybrid Buildings 7,053,000 - - 7,053,000
Carpets 9,810,129 - - 9,810,129
Electrical equipment 7,079,464 - - 7,079,464
Furniture and fittings 22,758,252 - - 22,758,252
Other equiipment 2,899,801 - - 2,899,801
SBMEC-F hall building 4,209,691 - - 4,209,691
Motor vehicles 7,826,002 - - 7,826,002

66,560,707 - - 66,560,707

Accumulated depreciation Balance as at 
01 January

2019

Depreciation 
for the year

Depreciation 
on disposals

Balance as at 
31 December

2019
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

PVC Covers 4,924,368 - - 4,924,368
Block xi/x2/x3/x4 Hybrid buildings 783,788 141,060 - 924,848
Carpets 9,810,129 - - 9,810,129
Electrical equipment 6,233,249 846,215 - 7,079,464
Furniture and fittings 19,887,182 2,871,070 - 22,758,252
Other equiipment 2,553,183 346,617 - 2,899,800
SBMEC-F hall building 417,600 84,194 - 501,794
Motor vehicles 7,826,002 - - 7,826,002

52,435,501 4,289,155 - 56,724,656

14,125,206 9,836,051
	

2.3 Property, plant and equipment - Leasehold assets

Costs Balance as at	 Additions	 Disposals		  Balance as at 
01 January			   31 December

           2019	 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Motor vehicle 25,800,000 - - 25,800,000

25,800,000 - - 25,800,000

Accumulated depreciation Balance as at	 Depreciation	 Depreciation	 Balance as at
01 January	 for the year	 on disposals	 31 December 

2019				    2019
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Motor vehicle 25,800,000 - - 25,800,000
   25,800,000 - - 25,800,000
      Net book value - -

2.2  Property, plant and equipment - CHOGM assets
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As at 31st December,	 2019	 2018
	 Rs.	 Rs.

3	 Intangible assets	
	 Cost
	 Balance at the begining of the year	 2,544,685	 2,500,315
	 Additions during the year	 -	 44,370
	 Balance at the end of the year	 2,544,685	 2,544,685

	 Amortisation
	 Balance at the begining of the year	 1,387,369	 1,128,546
	 Amortisation during the year	 257,645	 258,823
	 Balance at the end of the year	 1,645,015	 1,387,369

	 Carrying value	 899,670	 1,157,316	

4	 Non current financial assets
	 Staff loan
	 Balance as at the beginning of the year	 40,431,781	 41,029,141
	 Loan granted during the year	 29,641,070	 23,617,613
	 Loan repayment during the year	 (21,244,996)	 (14,158,268)
	 Balance as at the end of the year	 48,827,855	 40,431,781

5	 Inventory	
	I nventory	 25,431,029	 20,787,738
	 (-) Provision for inventory	 (1,735,698)	 (1,735,698)
		  23,695,331	 19,052,039

6	 Trade and other receivables
	T rade receivables (Note 6.1)	 138,690,918	 166,015,602
	 Other receivables - reimbursement (Note 6.2)	 6,362,114	 4,572,668
	 Sundry debtors (Note 6.3)	 455,875	 243,210
	 Other receivables (Note 6.4)	 241,210	 241,210
		  145,750,117	 171,072,690

6.1	 Trade receivables	
	T rade receivables	 208,521,006	 224,561,232
	 (-) Provision for doubful debtors	 (69,830,088)	 (58,545,630)
		  138,690,918	 166,015,602

6.2	 Other receivables - reimbursement
	 Other receivables - reimbursement	 38,061,982	 36,967,160
	 (-) Provision for rental receivables	 (31,699,868)	 (32,394,492)
		  6,362,114	 4,572,668

6.3	 Sundry debtors	 2,490,032	 2,277,367
	 Sundry debtors	 (2,034,157)	 (2,034,157)	
	 (-) Provision for sundry debtors	 455,875	 243,210

6.4	 Other receivables
	 Other receivables	 4,891,833	 4,891,833
	 (-) Provision for other receivables	 (4,650,623)	 (4,650,623)
		  241,210	 241,210	
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As at 31st December,	 2019	 2018
	 Rs.	 Rs.

7	 Short term investments 
	F ixed deposits	 2,227,259,871	 1,751,518,311
		  2,227,259,871	 1,751,518,311
		
8	 Deposits, prepayment and advances 
	 Adavnces to staff	 5,735,160	 4,789,955
	 Refundable deposit (Note 8.1) 	 556,354	 381,004
	 Prepayments	 13,549,175	 787,099
	 Advance payments (Note 8.2)	 39,709,513	 6,358,124
	 WHT receivables	 9,798,723	 4,457,663
		  69,348,925	 16,773,845

8.1	 Refundable deposit 
	 Refundable deposit 	 656,504	 481,154
	 (-) Provision for refundable deposit	 (100,150)	 (100,150)
		  556,354	 381,004

8.2	 Advance payments
	 Advance payments	 42,451,972	 9,100,583
	 (-) Provision for advance payments	 (2,742,459)	 (2,742,459)
		  39,709,513	 6,358,124

9	 Cash and cash equivalents 
	 Cash at bank 	 163,287,619	 110,802,513
	 Cash in hand	 138,970	 128,508
		  163,426,589	 110,931,021
	 (-) Bank overdraft	 (10,467,435)	 (5,362,786)
	 Net cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purpose	 152,959,154	 105,568,235

	
10	 Specific funds	
	 Capital aid fund	 343,466,778	 354,044,574
	 CHOGM 2013 Year fund	 9,836,050	 14,125,206
		  353,302,828	 368,169,780

11	F inance lease obligations
	 Balance at the begining of the year	 5,055,520	 11,441,440
	 Obtained during the year 	 -	 -
	 Paid during the year	 (5,055,520)	 (6,385,920)
	 Balance at the end of the year	 -	 5,055,520

	 Interest
	 Balance at the begining of the year	 228,390	 1,064,111
	 Additions during the year	 -	 -
	I nterest charged to income statement	 (228,390)	 (835,720)
	 Balance at the end of the year	 -	 228,391
	
	 Present value of minimum lease payment	 -	 4,827,129
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As at 31st December,	 2019	 2018
    	  Rs.	 Rs.	

11.1	 Lease payable after one year	 -	 333,298
11.2	 Lease payable within one year	 -	 4,493,831

12	 Retirement benefits obligation
	 Balance at the begining of the year	 67,736,213	 61,120,757
	 Provision made during the year	 4,254,256	 12,180,453
	 Payments made during the year	 (7,954,448)	 (5,564,997)
	 Balance at the end of the year	 64,036,021	 67,736,213

13	 Trade and other payables	
	T rade creditors	 45,148,558	 23,114,857
	 Other payables	 31,487,557	 8,165,933
	 Refundable deposits	 2,490,897	 2,204,897
	 Advance reservation	 97,421,275	 108,217,608
		  176,548,287	 141,703,295

14	 Accrued expenses	
	 Statutory payables	 106,150	 2,180,297
	I ncentive payable	 72,522,728	 73,594,845
	 Sundry accrued expenses	 17,141,915	 33,475,128
	 Other tax payables	 3,116,695	 3,775,444
	 Unpaid wages	 1,046,235	 975,835
	 Audit and other services	 4,488,497	 7,188,400
	T elephone payable	 -	 291,511
		  98,422,220	 121,481,460

For the year ended 31st December,	 2019	 2018
		  Rs.	 Rs.

15	 Income	
	 Hiring income	 645,480,786	 640,265,908
	 Rent income	 300,281,434	 205,039,674
	I nterest income	 229,590,587	 168,110,702
	 Commission income	 98,734,378	 98,962,609
	 Language course fee	 11,493,325	 11,687,050
	I nternational relation course fee	 19,715,400	 16,477,025
		  1,305,295,910	 1,140,542,968

16	 Other income	
	 Amortisation of Restricted Funds	 14,866,952	 18,023,477
	 Sundry receipt income	 4,681,503	 4,242,120
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As at 31st December,	 2019	 2018
    	  Rs.	 Rs.	

	T elephone income	 11,493,373	 11,341,746
	 Gain on disposal of assets	 -	 4,588,002
	 Miscellaneous income	 263,047	 370,305
	 Over provision of other receivables	 364,775	 36,102,513
	 Seminar and related income	 4,186,421	 -
	 Library department	 -	 372,165
	 Disposal of scrap items income	 1,451,363	 -
	F oreign exchange gain	 -	 3,161,787
		  37,307,434	 78,202,115

For the year ended 31st December,	 2019	 2018
		  Rs.	 Rs.

17	F inance expenses
	 Lease interest	 540,565	 410,856
	 Bank charges	 249,015	 839,972
		  789,580	 1,250,828

18	 Other expenses
	 Disposal of assets	 484,825	 -
	 Disposal of scrap items	 -	 1,085,430
	 Donations	 -	 30,000
	 Provision for other receivables	 6,742,398	 -
	 Provisions and write off debtors	 4,334,982	 6,139,394
	 WHT write off	 -	 5,417,124
	 Seminar and publication expenses	 248,003	 576,754
		  11,810,208	 13,248,702

19	 Surplus before tax
	T he following items have been recognized as expenses in determining surplus before tax:

	 Staff costs	 288,679,965	 288,328,067
	 Defined contribution plan cost - EPF and ETF	 18,708,396	 17,663,722
	 Defined benefit plan cost - gratuity	 4,254,256	 12,180,453	

Depreciation and amortization	 56,470,631	 69,818,632
	 Auditor’s remuneration	 1,500,000	 1,350,000

20	 Related party transactions

20.1	 Transactions with key management personnel

	T he Foundation considers its member of the Board of Management as key managment personnel of the Foundation. 
Compensation paid to key management personnel of the Foundation is as follows:
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		  2019	 2018
		  Rs.	 Rs.
	 Short term benefits	 -	 -
		  -	 -

21	 Commitments and Contingencies

	T here were no material capital commitments or contingencies as at the end of the reporting date which need to be 
adjusted or disclosed in the financial statements.

22	 Litigations and claims

	T he following cases were pending against the Foundation as at the reporting date:

	 22.1 L. T. 01/70/2020 - U. P. Yasaratne Vs. S. W. R. D. Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation.

	 22.2 CC/C/IR/2/512/2020 - K. C. A. Kuruppuarachchi Vs. S. W. R. D. Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation.

23	 Events occurring after the reporting date

	T here were no material events that occurred after the reporting date which require adjustments to or disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

24	 Other matters: Impact of COVID 19 pandemic

	T he spread of COVID 19 has severely impacted many economics and businesses are being forced to cease or limit 
their operations. The duration and intensity of the impact of COVID 19 and resulting disruption to the operations of 
the Foundation is uncertain.

	T he Foundation understands the importance of the safety measures implemented by world leaders and implemented 
all the precautionary measures advised in operating servies. We are aware of the unpredictable nature of the current 
situation of the country and the globe, therefore the Foundation wishes to further observe the impacts and take 
proactive measures to ensure the smooth functioning of the services. While, abiding by the health guidelines to 
ensure health and safety.

25	 The Board of Management’s responsibility on financial statements

	T he Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with SLFRS for SMEs.

04-354
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Miscellaneous Departmental Notices 
PV 00205656.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Suva Lanka Nihon (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Suva 
Lanka Nihon (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“25.10.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Suva Lanka 
Nihon (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-458

PV 61217.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Lakpro Commodities (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Lakpro 
Commodities (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “05.09.2007” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Lakpro 
Commodities (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.
04-457

PV 118347

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Sukizu Auto Parts (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Sukizu 
Auto Parts (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“28.11.2016” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Sukizu Auto 
Parts (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-456

PV 00200168.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the 
name of “B. & C. Holding Enterprises (Private) 

Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that                          
“B. & C. Holding Enterprises (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “08.05.2018” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “B. & C. Holding 
Enterprises (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-455
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PV 119517.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Athuraliya Construction (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Athuraliya Construction (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “30.01.2017” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Athuraliya 
Construction (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-454

PV 124440

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Reliance Migration Services (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Reliance Migration Services (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “03.08.2017” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Reliance Migration 
Services (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-453

PV 124260.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Paypoint Lanka (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Paypoint Lanka (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “27.07.2017” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Paypoint Lanka 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-452

PV 100045.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Innoit International (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Innoit 
International (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“04.08.2014” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Innoit 
International (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

03-451
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PV 00211732.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “C C I Lanka Holdings (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “C C I 
Lanka Holdings (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “14.05.2019” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “C C I Lanka 
Holdings (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-450
PV 106994.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “D and R International Investment (Private) 

Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that                         
“D and R International Investment (Private) Limited” 
a Company incorporated on “14.07.2015” under the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business 
or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “D and R 
International Investment (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.
Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.
04-449

PV 95939.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “P L C Alwis & Company (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that  
“P L C Alwis & Company (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “09.12.2013” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “P L C Alwis & 
Company (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-448

PV 95403.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the 
name of “Hands International Holdings (Private) 

Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Hands 
International Holdings (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “06.11.2013” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Hands International 
Holdings (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-447
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PV 79627.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Mevin Enterprises (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Mevin 
Enterprises (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“27.06.2011” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Mevin Enterprises 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-446

PV 62959.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Nimroma Gems (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Nimroma Gems (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “06.02.2008” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Nimroma Gems 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-445

PV 128750.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Developoasis International (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Developoasis International (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “10.01.2018” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Developoasis 
International (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-444

PV 117875.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Mullegama Art Center (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Mullegama Art Center (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “08.11.2016” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Mullegama Art 
Center (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-443
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PV 00206372.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Kandy Agri Holdings (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Kandy 
Agri Holdings (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“15.11.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Kandy Agri 
Holding (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-464

PV 85001.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Nest Win Lands (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Nest Win Lands (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“20.03.2012” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Nest Win Lands 
(Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-463

PV 98729.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Navagraga Allopathy & Ayurveda Hospital 

(Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Navagraga Allopathy & Ayurveda Hospital (Pvt) Ltd” 
a Company incorporated on “23.05.2014” under the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business 
or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Navagraga 
Allopathy & Ayurveda Hospital (Pvt) Ltd” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-462

PV 88764.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Smart Solution Holdings (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Smart Solution Holdings (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “10.10.2012” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Smart Solution 
Holdings (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-461
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PV 119774.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Colambage Importers (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Colambage Importers (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “01.02.2017” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Colambage 
Importers (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-460

PV 00201151.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Matota Associates (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Matota 
Associates (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“21.06.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Matota 
Associates (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-459

PV 123149.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Wijethunge Holdings (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Wijethunge Holdings (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated 
on “16.06.2017” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Wijethunge 
Holdings (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-487

PB 5145.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Tory Grand Holdings Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Tory 
Grand Holdings Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“17.10.2013” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Tory Grand 
Holdings Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-486
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PV 17356.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Anura Manpower Suppliers (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Anura Manpower Suppliers (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “20.02.2004” under the Companies Act, 
No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Anura Manpower 
Suppliers (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-485

PV 22130.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Sohanec Total I T Solutions (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Sohanec Total I T Solutions (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “25.11.2004” under the Companies Act, 
No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Sohanec Total  
I T Solutions (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-484

PV 00208453.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Indimage Trainers and Consultants (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Indimage Trainers and Consultants (Pvt) Ltd” a Company 
incorporated on “03.02.2019” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Indimage Trainers 
and Consultants (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-483

PV 00201101.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Eco - Rich International (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Eco 
- Rich International (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“20.06.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Eco - Rich 
International (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-482
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PV 00205887.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Samo Kids Planet (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Samo Kids Planet (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“01.11.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Samo Kids 
Planet (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-481

PV 00204990.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Asfa Fasteners (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Asfa Fasteners (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“05.10.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Asfa Fasteners 
(Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-480

PV 00212817.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Double Elephant Machinery Lanka (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Double Elephant Machinery Lanka (Pvt) Ltd” a Company 
incorporated on “21.06.2019” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Double Elephant 
Machinery Lanka (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-479

PV 84783.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Ceylon Holidays & Vacations (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Ceylon 
Holidays & Vacations (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated 
on “12.03.2012” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Ceylon Holidays 
& Vacations (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-478



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'04'16

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 16.04.2021
688

PV 00204143.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Associated Carbons (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Associated Carbons (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“11.09.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Associated 
Carbons (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-477

PV 00210152.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Resplendent Nature Trails (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Resplendent Nature Trails (Pvt) Ltd” a Company 
incorporated on “23.03.2019” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Resplendent 
Nature Trails (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-476

PV 123534.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Piyora International (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Piyora International (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“04.07.2017” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Piyora 
International (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-475

PV 00206542.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “The Alpha Consortium (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “The 
Alpha Consortium (Pvt) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “23.11.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “The Alpha 
Consortium (Pvt) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-474
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PV 91930.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Diora Solutions (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Diora Solutions (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“05.04.2013” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Diora Solutions 
(Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-473

PV 00211927.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Dedunu Sanwada (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Dedunu Sanwada (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“22.05.2019” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Dedunu Sanwada 
(Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-472

PV 83461.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “A B T Sky (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that  
“A B T Sky (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“02.01.2012” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “A B T Sky (Pvt) 
Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck 
off the Register of Companies kept in this office and the 
Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-471

PV 00201532.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Corporate Trust Consultancy Services (Pvt) 

Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Corporate Trust Consultancy Services (Pvt) Ltd” a 
Company incorporated on “04.07.2018” under the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business 
or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Corporate Trust 
Consultancy Services (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-470



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'04'16

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 16.04.2021
690

PV 00205931.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “R. S. P. International (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that  
“R. S. P. International (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated 
on “02.11.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “R. S. P. 
International (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-469

PV 00210183.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Frangipani Holidays (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Frangipani Holidays (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated 
on “25.03.2019” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Frangipani 
Holidays (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-468

PV 116814.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “E. Z. Price (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “E. Z. 
Price (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on “29.09.2016” 
under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on 
business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “E. Z. Price (Pvt) 
Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck 
off the Register of Companies kept in this office and the 
Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-467

PV 115757.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “M G M Solar (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “M G M 
Solar (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on “15.08.2016” 
under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on 
business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “M G M Solar 
(Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-466
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PV 00205970.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “S & S Clothing Collection (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “S & S 
Clothing Collection (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“04.11.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “S & S Clothing 
Collection (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
30th March, 2021.

04-465

SEYLAN BANK PLC—dambulla  branch
(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 

Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 

of 1990

Account No. : 1030-34537258-001.

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that 
at a meeting held on 22.02.2021 by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously. 

Whereas Kulathunga Mudiyanselage Edman 
Silva alias Kulathunga Mudiyanselage Ekman 
Silva as ‘Obligor/Mortgagor’ has made default in 
payment due on Mortgage Bond Nos. 1589 dated 
30th May, 2017 and 1756 dated 23rd May, 2018 both 
attested by A. Melani De Lima, Notary Public in 
favour of Seylan Bank PLC (Company Registration  
No. PQ 9 under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007) and 
there is now due and owing to the Seylan Bank PLC on 

account of principal and interest up to 07th August, 2020 
an aggregate sum of Rupees Eight Million Six Hundred 
and Twenty-six Thousand Two Hundred and Forty-seven 
and Cents Ninety-seven (Rs. 8,626,247.97) together with 
interest on Rupees Eight Million One Hundred Thousand 
(Rs. 8,100,000.00) at the rate of Sixteen Point Five Percent 
(16.5%) per annum from 08th August, 2020 in respect of 
the Term Loan facility on the said Bonds and the Board of 
Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested 
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 as amended, do hereby resolve 
that Mr. Thusith Karunarathne, Licensed Auctioneer be 
authorized to sell the properties and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to 
Seylan Bank PLC by the said Bond Nos. 1589 and 1756 
by Public Auction for recovery of the said sum of Rupees 
Eight Million Six Hundred and Twenty-six Thousand 
Two Hundred and Forty-seven and Cents Ninety-seven  
(Rs. 8,626,247.97) together with interest as aforesaid 
from 08th August 2020 up to the date of recovery of full 
sum, with costs of advertising, any other charges under 
Section 13 of the said Act, less payments (if any) since 
received.

THE SCHEDULE

(1) All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 depicted in Plan No. 3198C dated 30.06.2016 made by 
G. V. B. Dharmarathne, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
portion of “Kajuyaya” situated at Haluappullana Wewa 
Village within the Grama Niladhari Division of Dambulla in 
the Divisional Secretary’s Division and Municipal Council 
Limits of Dambulla in Wagapanaha Pallesiyapattuwa of 
Matale North in the District of Matale, Central Province and 
which said Lot 2 is bounded on the North by Lot 1 in the 
above said Plan on the East by Road (M.C) and on the South 
by Lot 3 in the same Plan No. 3198C and on the West by 
Ela (Lot 5) and containing in extent of Twenty-five Decimal
Three Perches (0A., 0R., 25.3P.) together with trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon according 
to the said Plan No. 3198C.

(2) All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3 depicted in Plan No. 3198C ated 30.06.2016 made 
by G. V. B. Dharmarathne, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called portion of Kajuyaya” situated at Haluappullana Wewa 
Village in the Grama Niladhari Division of Dambulla in 
the Divisional Secretary’s Division and Municipal Council 
Limits of Dambulla in Wagapanaha Pallesiyapattuwa of 
Matale North in the District of Matale, Cential Province 
and which said Lot 3 is bounded on the North by Lot 2 
in the above said Plan on the East by Road (M.C.) and on 
the South by Lot 4 in the same Plan No. 3198C and on the 
West by Ela (Lot 5) and containing in extent of Twenty-
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three Decimal Three Perches (0A., 0R., 23.3P.) together 
with trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon 
according to the said Plan No. 3198C.

Which above said allotment of land marked Lot 2 and 
Lot 3 are portions out of the following lands:

All that divided and defined contiguous allotment 
of land marked Lots 1 and 2 depicted in Plan No. 5729 
dated 17.08.2012 made by A. M. Anurarathne, Licensed 
Surveyor of the land called portion of “Kajuyaya” situated 
at Haluappullana Wewa Village in the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Dambulla in the Divisional Secretariat Division 
and Municipal Council Limits of Dambulla in Wagapanaha 
Pallesiyapattuwa of Matale North in the District of Matale, 
Central Province and which said Lots 1 & 2 together 
are bounded on the North by land claimed by Gamini 
Wickramasinghe, on the East by Pirivena Road and on the 
South by land claimed by Upul Rajapaksha and on the West 
by Ela on and containing in aggregate extent of Two Roods 
and Sixteen Perches (0A., 2R., 16P.) together with trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon according 
to the said Plan No. 5729.

The properties mortgaged under the Mortgage Bond  
Nos. 1589 dated 30th May, 2017 and 1756 dated 23rd May, 
2018 both attested by A. Melani De Lima, Notary Public.

By Order of the Board of Director,

	 (Mrs.) V. A. Paranagama, 
	 Attomey-at-Law, 
	 Head of Legal.

04-512

SEYLAN  BANK  PLC
ambalangoda  branch

(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 
Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 

of 1990

Account No. : 0240-12827847-001.

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that 

at a meeting held on 22.02.2021 by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously. 

Whereas Walawedurage Randima Sudath 
Madushanka and Illekuttige Tharika Shehani Fernando 
both of Batapola as ‘Obligors/Mortgagor’ have 
made default in payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 
1647 dated 21st September, 2017 attested by W. D. 
Priyanthi, Notary Public in favour of Seylan Bank PLC 
(Company Registration No. PQ 9 under the Companies 
Act, No. 07 of 2007) and there is now due and owing 
to the Seylan Bank PLC on account of principal 2020 
a sum of Rupees Forty- three Million Seven Hundred 
and Ninety-six Thousand Seven Hundred and Forty-
one and Cents Sixty (Rs. 43,796,741.60) together with 
interest on Rupees Thirty-six Million Seven Hundred 
and Twenty Thousand Sixty-eight and Cents Ninety  
(Rs. 36,720,068.90) at the rate of Eighteen Percent (18%) 
per annum from 13th October, 2020 in respect of the 
Term Loan facility on the said Bond and the Board of 
Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested 
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 as amended, do hereby resolve that  
Mrs.Chandima Gamage, Licensed Auctioneer be 
authorized to sell the property and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to 
Seylan Bank PLC by the said Bond No. 1647 by Public 
Auction for recovery of the said sum of Rupees Forty- 
three Million Seven Hundred and Ninety-six Thousand 
Seven Hundred and Forty-one and .Cents Sixty  
(Rs. 43,796,741.60) together with interest as aforesaid 
from 13th October, 2020 up to the date of recovery of full 
sum, with costs of advertising, any other charges under 
Section 13 of the said Act, less payments (if any) since 
received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot C4 depicted in Plan bearing No. 4267 dated 12.09.2017 
made by Lakshman Serasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of 
defined Lot C4 of Lot C of Western portion of the Land 
called ‘Gangabodapelawatta’ situated at Katukurunda, 
in Ward No. 01, within the Grama Niladhari Division of 
730A-Kalapuwa, within the Urban Council limits and 
Divisional Secretariat of Kalutara, in Kalutara Bedda of 
Kalutara Totamuna North, in the District of Kalutara, 
Western Province and which said Lot C4 is bounded on the 
North by Patrick Peiris Mawatha, on the East by Lot C3 in 
Plan No.2934, on the South by Katukurundugahawatta and 
on the West by reservation along Railway line, containing in 
extent Two Roods and Twenty Perches (0A., 02R., 20P.) or 
0.2529 Hectares, together with soil, trees, plantations, and 
everything else standing thereon.



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'04'16

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 16.04.2021
693

The said Land is a re-survey of the following.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot C4 depicted in Plan bearing No. 2934 dated 14.03.2017 
made by N. Malith M. De Silva, Licensed Surveyor of 
defined Lot C of Western portion of the Land called 
‘Gangabodapelawatta’ situated at Katukurunda, in Ward  
No. 01, within the Grama Niladhari Division of 
730A-Kalapuwa, within the Urban Council limits and 
Divisional Secretariat of Kalutara, in Kalutara Bedda of 
Kalutara Totamuna North, in the District of Kalutara, 
Western Province and which said Lot C4 is bounded on the 
North by Patrick Peiris Mawatha, on the East by Lot C3 
in the same land, on the South by Katukurundugahawatta 
and on the West by Reservation for Railway containing in 
extent Two Roods and Twenty Perches (0A., 02R., 20P.) or 
0.2529 Hectare, together with soil, trees, plantations, and 
everything else standing thereon.

By Order of the Board of Director,

	 (Mrs.) V. A. Paranagama, 
	 Attorney-at-Law, 
	 Head of Legal.

04-511

SEYLAN  BANK  PLC
Nittambuwa  branch

(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 
Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 

of 1990

Account No. : 0870-32448172-001.

Whereas Wijesinghe Mudalige Don Aruna Shantha of 
Nittambuwa carrying on a business as a Sole Proprietor 
under the name, style and firm of “Ash Chem Industries” 
bearing Business Registration No. W/ATH/L/6030 at 
Nittambuwa as ‘Obligor/Mortgagor’ has made default 
in payment due on Mortgage Bond Nos. 878 dated 03rd 
April 2014 attested by K. D. T. K. Kaluarachchi and 
1345 dated 18th August, 2017 attested by W. A. R. J. 
Wellappili, Notary Public in favour of Seylan Bank PLC 
(Company Registration No. PQ 9 under the Companies 
Act, No. 07 of 2007) and there is now due and owing to 
the Seylan Bank PLC on account of principal and interest 
up to 20th July, 2020 a sum of Rupees Six Million Three 

Hundred and Thirty-nine Thousand One Hundred and 
Eighty-eight and Cents Fifty (Rs. 6,339,188.50) together 
with interest on Rupees Five Million (Rs. 5,000,000.00) 
at the rate of Nineteen Percent (19%) per annum from 
21st July, 2020 in respect of the Term Loan facility on the 
said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank 
PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 as 
amended, do hereby resolve that Mrs.Chandima Gamage, 
Licensed Auctioneer be authorized to sell the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by the said Bond  
Nos. 878 and 1345 by Public Auction for recovery of 
the said sum of Rupees Six Million Three Hundred and 
Thirty-nine Thousand One Hundred and Eighty-eight and 
Cents Fifty (Rs. 6,339,188.50) together with interest as 
aforesaid from 21st July, 2020 up to the date of recovery 
of full sum, with costs of advertising, any other charges 
under Section 13 of the said Act, less payments (if any) 
since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land Lot C 
depicted in Plan No. 964 dated 12.07.2005 made by W. A. 
Yapa, Licensed Surveyor of the land called ‘Koongahawatta’ 
situated at Kalalpitiya Village, within the Grama Niladhari 
Division of 343, Kalalpitiya within the Divisional 
Secretary’s Division of Attanagalla within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Attanagalla in Udugaha Pattu of Siyane 
Korale in the District of Gampaha, Western Province and 
which said Lot C is bounded on the North by Lot 1 in Plan 
No. 6348 dated 26.10.1994 made by R. A. Chandrarathne, 
Licensed Surveyor on the East by Lot D in the said Plan 
No.6348 on the South by Balance portion of Lot 1 and on 
the West by Lot B in the said Plan No.6348 and containing 
in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) Together with trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon according 
to the said Plan No. 964.

By Order of the Board of Director,

	 (Mrs.) V. A. Paranagama, 
	 Attorney-at-Law, 
	 Head of Legal.

04-510
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SEYLAN  BANK  PLC
pettah  branch

(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 
Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 

of 1990

Account No. : 0640-01287265-101.

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that 
at a meeting held on 22.02.2021 by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously. 

Whereas Wewalagamage Don Asela Jayantha of Ja-Ela 
as ‘Obligor/Mortgagor’ has made default in payment due 
on Mortgage Bond No.2062 dated 17th December, 2015 
attested by M. G. R. P. Kumari, Notary Public in favour 
of Seylan Bank PLC (Company Registration No. PQ 9 
under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007) and there is 
now due and owing to the Seylan Bank PLC on account 
of principal and interest up to 09th October, 2019 a sum of 
Rupees Six Million Six Hundred and Seventy-one Thousand 
Nine Hundred and Thirty-four and Cents Ninety-one  
(Rs. 6,671,934.91) together with interest on Rupees Six 
Million Three Hundred and Nineteen Thousand Three 
Hundred and Seventeen and Cents Thirty (Rs. 6,319,317.30) 
at the rate of Fourteen percent (14%) per annum from 10th 
October, 2019 in respect of the Sirinivasa Housing Loan 
facility on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 as amended, do hereby resolve that Mr. Thusith 
Karunaratne, Licensed Auctioneer be authorized to sell the 
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by the said Bond 
No. 2062 by Public Auction for recovery of the said sum of 
Rupees Six Million Six Hundred and Seventy-one Thousand 
Nine Hundred and Thirty-four and Cents Ninety-one  
(Rs. 6,671,934.91) together with interest as aforesaid from 
10th October, 2019 up to the date of recovery of full sum, 
with costs of advertising, any other charges under Section 
13 of the said Act, less payments (if any) since received.”

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 1790 dated 24th September, 2015 
made by S. A. Gunawardena, Licensed Surveyor [being the 
amalgamation of the resurvey of the existing boundaries of 

Lot B1 depicted in Plan No. 11572 dated 02.08.1990 and 
Lot B2C depicted in Plan No. 17238 dated 07.01.2001 
both Plans made by M. D. J. V. Perera, L.S] now forming 
one land called ‘Etambagahalanda alias Talgahawatta’, 
bearing Assessment No. 22/1, School Mawatha, Situated at 
Batagama North within the Grama Niladhari Division of 211 
Batagama North and the Divisional Secretaries Division of 
Ja-Ela within Batuwatta Sub Office in the Jaela Pradeshiya 
Sabha in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the District 
of Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot 1 is 
bounded on the North by Lot A of same land of K. A. W. 
Godakumbura, on the East by 12ft Road (Amalgamation of 
Lot B3 in Plan No: 11572 and Lot B2A in Plan No.17238 
both of M. D. J. V. Perera, Licensed Surveyor) and Lot 
B2B of same land in Plan No. 17238 of M. D. J. V. Perera, 
Licensed Surveyor on the South by Land of A. D. Camillus 
and on the West by Land of heirs of Manuel Alwis and 
containing in extent Seventeen Decimal Seven Naught 
Perches (0A., 0R., 17.7P.).

The said Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 1790 dated 24th 
September, 2015 made by S. A. Gunawardena, Licensed 
Surveyor is an amalgamation of the land marked Lot B1 
depicted in Plan No. 11572 dated 02.08.1990 and land marked 
Lot B2C depicted in Plan No. 17238 dated 07.01.2001 both 
made by M. D. J. V. Perera, Licensed Surveyor.

Together with the right of way and other rights over and 
along the Roadway 12 feet wide according to Plan No. 1790 
dated 24th September, 2015 made by S. A. Gunawardena, 
Licensed Surveyor formed by the amalgamation of Lot 
B3 depicted in Plan No. 11572 dated 02.08.1990 made by  
M. D. J. V. Perera, Licensed Surveyor and the Lot B2A in Plan  
No. 17238 dated 07th January, 2001 made by M. D. J. V. 
Perera Licensed Surveyor. 

By Order of the Board of Director,

	 (Mrs.) V. A. Paranagama, 
	 Attorney-at-Law, 
	 Head of Legal.

04-509

SEYLAN  BANK  PLC
kattankudy  branch

(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 
Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 

of 1990

Account No. : 0740-34365575-001.
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It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that 
at a meeting held on 22.02.2021 by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously. 

Whereas Mohamed Ibrahim Mohamed Makbool of 
Kattankudy carrying on business as a Proprietorship 
under the name, style and firm of ‘M I M Distrubutors’ 
under Certificate of Registration No.A 553 at Kattankudy 
as ‘Obligor/Mortgagor’ has made default in payment 
due on Mortgage Bond No. 469 dated 19th May, 2017 
attested by Arulvani Sutharsan, Notary Public in favour 
of Seylan Bank PLC (Company Registration No. PQ 9 
under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007) and there is 
now due and owing to the Seylan Bank PLC on account 
of principal and interest up to 09th September, 2020 
an aggregate sum of Rupees Thirty-nine Million Four 
Hundred and Thirty-seven Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Eighty-nine and Cents Seventy-five (Rs. 39,437,889.75) 
and interest upon facilities as mentioned below on the 
said Bond and the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank 
PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 as amended, do hereby resolve that Mr. Thusith 
Karunarathna Licensed Auctioneer be authorized to sell 
the property and premises morefully described in the 
Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by 
the said Bond No. 469 by Public Auction for recovery 
of the said sum of Rupees Thirty-nine Million Four 
Hundred and Thirty-seven Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Eighty-nine and Cents Seventy-five (Rs. 39,437,889.75) 
together with interest as mentioned below from 10th 
September, 2020 up to the date of recovery of full sum, 
with costs of advertising, any other charges under Section 
13 of the said Act, less payments (if any) since received.

(a) In respect of Overdraft facility a sum of Rupees 
Seven Million Five Hundred and Fifty-one Thousand 
Seven Hundred and Thirty-seven and Cents Forty-five  
(Rs. 7,551,737.45) together with interest at the rate of Twenty 
Eight Percent (28%) per annum from 10th September, 2020 
to date of sale.

(b) In respect of Term Loan facility a sum of Rupees 
Thirty-one Million Eight Hundred and Eighty-six 
Thousand One Hundred and Fifty Two and Cents Thirty 
(Rs.31,886,152.30) together with interest on Rupees Twenty-
eight Million Seven Hundred and Forty-four Thousand  
(Rs. 28,744,000.00) at the rate of Seventeen Percent (17%) 
per annum from 10th September, 2020 to date of sale.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land called 
Uranikadu & Aragan Estate marked Lot 1 depicted in Plan 
No. KK/BT/2017/003 (supB) dated 24.04.2017 made by  
K. Kamalanathan, Licensed Surveyor (being resurvey of the 
Lot 2 in Plan No. KK/BT/2016/496 dated 19.04.2016 made 
by K. Kamalanathan, Licensed Surveyor) of the premises 
situated at Urani in the village of Pottuvil within the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Urani Pottuvil and Divisional 
Secretariat Division of Pottuvil within the Pradeshiya Sabha 
limits of Pottuvil in Panamapattu in the District of Ampara 
Eastern Province and containing in extent Three Acres Three 
Roods and Seven Decimal Five Naught Perches (03A., 03R., 
07.50P.) as per said Plan No. KK/BT/2017/003 (supB) which 
said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Lot 01 in Survey Plan 
No. KK/BT/2017/003 (supB) presently belonging to M. I. 
M. Makbool, on the East by Sea Reservation, on the South by 
Land presently belonging to Muthubanda Suventhirajah and 
path and on the West by Road and together with everything 
standing therein contained.

By Order of the Board of Director,

	 (Mrs.) V. A. Paranagama, 
	 Attorney-at-Law, 
	 Head of Legal.

04-508

SEYLAN  BANK  PLC
kandy  branch

(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 
Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 

of 1990

Account No. : 017031373197001.

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that 
at a meeting held on 22.02.2021 by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously. 

Whereas Ambanwala Herath Mudiyanselage Sunil 
Gamini Ambanwala and Gardiya Manawaduge Shiroma 
Prabhashini Kularatne both of Gunnepana as “Obligors/ 
Mortgagor” have made default in payment due on 
Bond Nos. 2992 dated 09th March, 2009, 3125 dated 
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29th October, 2009 both attested by S. Paramsothy, 
Notary Public, 832 dated 21st July, 2011, 1142 dated 
18th July, 2012, 1269 dated 24th January, 2013, 1615 
dated 19th January, 2015, 1880 dated 02nd September, 
2016, 2032 dated 07th September, 2017, 2141, 2142 
and 2143 all dated 20th September, 2018 all attested 
by J. K. Nawarathne, Notary Public in favour of Seylan 
Bank PLC (Company Registration No. PQ 9 under the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007) and there is now due and 
owing to the Seylan Bank PLC on account of principal 
and interest up to 05th November, 2020 an aggregate 
sum of Rupees Twenty-four Million Seven Hundred 
and Sixty-six Thousand Eighteen and Cents Eight (Rs. 
24,766,018.08) and interest upon facilities as mentioned 
below on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors 
of Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990 as amended, do hereby resolve that Mrs. 
Chandima Gamage, Licensed Auctioneer be authorized 
to sell the property and premises morefully described in 
the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC 
by the said Bond Nos. 2992, 3125, 832, 1142, 1269, 1615, 
1880, 2032, 2141, 2142 and 2143 by Public Auction for 
recovery of the said sum of Rupees Twenty-four Million 
Seven Hundred and Sixty-six Thousand Eighteen and 
Cents Eight (Rs. 24,766,018.08) together with interest as 
mentioned below from 06th November, 2020 up to the 
date of recovery of full sum, with costs of advertising, 
any other charges under Section 13 of the said Act, less 
payments (if any) since received.

(a) In respect of Term Loan facility a sum of Rupees 
Sixteen Million One Hundred and Seven 
Thousand Twenty-four and Cents Twenty-nine 
(Rs. 16,107,024.29) together with interest on 
Rupees Thirteen Million Eight Hundred Thousand  
(Rs. 13,800,000.00) at the rate of Eighteen Percent 
(18%) per annum from 06th November, 2020 to date 
of sale.

(b) In respect of Permanent Overdraft facility a sum of 
Rupees Eight Million Six Hundred and Fifty-eight 
Thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety-three and 
Cents Seventy-nine (Rs. 8,658,993.79) together with 
interest at the rate of Twenty- eight Percent (28%) 
per annum from 06th November, 2020 to date of sale. 

THE SCHEDULE 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No.905 dated 11.01.2009 made by 
E.M.P.W.Y.Werapitiya, Licensed Surveyor being a portion 
of the land called and known as “Kaiwadantennehena” 
situated at Napana in Udagampaha Korale of Pata Dumbara 

in Bogaskumbra - 661 Grama Niladhari Division and 
Divisional Secretary’s of Kundasale in the District of 
Kandy, Central Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on 
the North West by Ela on the North East by Pradeshiyasaba 
Road, leading from Gunnepana to Kundasale on the South 
East by Road leading from Houses to Kundasale and on 
the South West by Daulkarayagehena land claimed by 
I.Ratnayake and containing in extent Three Roods Eleven 
Decimal Three Four Perches (A0-R3-P11.34) or 0.03322 
Hectare, together with buildings, trees, plantations and 
everything else standing thereon according to the said Plan 
No. 905.

By Order of the Board of Director,

	 (Mrs.) V. A. Paranagama, 
	 Attorney-at-Law, 
	 Head of Legal.

04-507

SEYLAN  BANK  PLC
kaduruwela  branch

(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 
Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 

of 1990

Account No. : 1020 34394798 101.

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that 
at a meeting held on 22.02.2021 by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously. 

Whereas Umagiliya Durage Somarathne, Uduwella 
Durage Malani Jayanthi and Uduwella Durage Chandani 
Jayanthi all of Pollonnaruwa as “Obligors/Mortgagor” 
have made default in payment due on Bond No. 429 
dated 03rd June, 2016 attested by N. C. Yatigammana, 
Notary Public in favour of Seylan Bank PLC (Company 
Registration No. PQ 9 under the Companies Act, No. 07 
of 2007) and there is now due and owing to the Seylan 
Bank PLC on account of principal and interest up to 
29th September, 2020 a sum of Rupees Eight Million 
One Hundred and Eighty Six Thousand Four Hundred 
and Ninety-one and Cents Eight (Rs. 8,186,491.08) 
together with interest on Rupees Six Million Seven 
Hundred Thousand Two Hundred and Forty-one and 
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Cents Ninety-seven (Rs. 6,700,241.97) at the rate of 
Seventeen Point Five Percent (17.5%) per annum from 
30th September, 2020 in respect of the Term Loan 
I facility on the said Bond and the Board of Directors 
of Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990 as amended, do hereby resolve that  
Mr. Thusith Karunaratne, Licensed Auctioneer be 
authorized to sell the property and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Seylan 
Bank PLC by the said Bond No. 429 by Public Auction 
for recoveiy of the said sum of Rupees Eight Million 
One Hundred and Eighty-six Thousand Four Hundred 
and Ninety-one and Cents Eight (Rs. 8,186,491.08) 
together with interest as aforesaid from 30th September, 
2020 up to the date of recovery of full sum, with costs 
of advertising, any other charges under Section 13 of the 
said Act, less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
4343 depicted in Plan No. F.T.P. 09 prerared by the Surveyor 
General and kept in his custody situated at Bendiwewa 
Village in 153 - Bendiwewa Grama Niladhari Division in 
Meda Pattuwa in Thamankaduwa Divisional Secretariats 
Division in Polonnaruwa District North Central Province 
is bounded on the North by Lot No. 4344 in F.T.P. 09 and 
Road, on the East by Lot No. 4344 in F.T.P.09, on the South 
by Lot 4344 F.T.P. 09 and on the West by Lot No. 4344 in 
F.T.P. 09 or Road and containing in extent Naught Decimal 
Five Two Eight (0.528 Ha) together with trees, plantations, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon according to 
the said Plan No. 4343.

The above said allotment of land has been resurveyed by 
way of Thamankaduwa Divisional Secretary letter bearing 
No. NCP/TK/9/2/153/100 dated 17.12.2014.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. W/697/14 dated 18.12.2014 
made by W. A. Premarathne, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Bendiwewa” situated at Bendiwewa Village 
in 153 - Bendiwewa Grama Niladhari Division in Meda 
Pattuwa within the Thamankaduwa Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits in Thamankaduwa Divisional Secretariat Division in 
Polonnaruwa District North Central Province is bounded on 
the North by Lot No. 4344 in F.T.P. 09 or Road, on the East 
by Lot No. 4344 in F.T.P.09, on the South by Lot 4344 F.T.P. 
09 and on the West by Lot No. 4344 in F.T.P. 09 or Road and 

containing in extent Naught Decimal Five Two Eight (0.528 
Ha) or (01A., 01R., 08.75P.) together with trees, plantations, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon.

By Order of the Board of Director,

	 (Mrs.) V. A. Paranagama, 
	 Attorney-at-Law, 
	 Head of Legal.

04-506

SAMPATH  BANK  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act No 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011

and No. 19 of 2011

Digital World Colombo (Private) Limited.
A/C No.: 0081 1000 0945.

At a meeting held on 25.02.2021 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously :

Whereas Digital World Colombo (Private) Limited a 
Company duly incorporated under the Companies Laws 
of Sri Lanka bearing Registration No. PV 103064 in 
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facilities granted against the security of property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond 
Nos. 150 dated 29th August, 2017 and 546 dated 20th 
& 21st September, 2018 both attested by H. C. Lakmini, 
Notary Public of Colombo in favour of Sampath Bank 
PLC holding Company Registration No. PQ 144 and 
having its Registered Office at No. 110, Sir James Peiris 
Mawatha, Colombo 02 and there is now due and owing 
on the said Bond bearing Nos. 150 and 546 to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as at 20th January, 2021 a sum of 
Rupees Sixty-three Million Two Hundred and Eighty- 
six Thousand Two Hundred Ninety-nine and Cents 
Ninety-six Only (Rs. 63,286,299.96) of lawful money 
of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the 
said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank 
PLC aforesaid under the powers vested by the Recovery 
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of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said 
credit facilities by the said Bond bearing Nos. 150 and 
546 to be sold in public auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, 
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Sixty-three Million Two Hundred 
and Eighty-six Thousand Two Hundred Ninety-nine and 
Cents Ninety-six Only (Rs. 63,286,299.96) together with 
further interest on a sum of Rupees Fifty-one Million 
Four Hundred and Seven Thousand only (Rs. 51,407,000) 
at the rate of Fifteen Decimal Five per centum (15.5%) 
per annum from 21st January, 2021 to date of satisfaction 
of the total debt due upon the said Bond bearing  
Nos. 150 and 546 together with costs of advertising 
and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that allotments of land marked Lot 1 in Plan No. 8557 
dated 05th August, 2017 made by T. B. S. Sangarandeniya, 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Dikkapitiya Estate” 
together with the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and 
everything else standing thereon situated at Nikapotha 
Village within the Grama Niladari Division of Nikapotha 
and Divisional Secretariat Division of Haldummulla in 
Kandapalle Korale in District of Badulla Uva Province and 
which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by S. D. Area 
Land claimed by A. W. Chandrasiri, on the East by Deemaya 
Estate L.R.C & Balance part same Land on the South by 
Land Claimed by R. Hettiarachchi and on the West by Road 
& Land claimed by H. L. Premasiri and containing in extent 
Sixteen Acres Twenty-six Perches (16A., 0R., 26 .0P.) 
according the said Plan No. 8557.

The said Lot 1 being a resurvey of Lot 7 in Plan  
No. 1046 G dated 21st November, 1976 made by M. F. 
Ismail, Licensed Surveyor and a sub division of the Lot 1 in 
Plan No.BD/8990e morefully described below;

All that allotments of land marked Lot 1 in Plan  
No. BD/8990e dated 05th May, 2011 made by P. B. 
Ilangasinhe, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Dikkapitiya Estate” together with the soil, trees, 
plantations, buildings and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Nikapotha Village within the Grama Niladari 
Division of Nikapotha and Divisional Secretariat Divison 
of Haldummulla in Kandapalle Korale in District of Badulla 
Uva Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North 
by S. D. Area Land claimed by A. W. Chandrasiri, on the 
East by Deemaya Estate L.R.C., on the South by Land 
Claimed by R. Hettiarachchi and on the West by Road & 

Land claimed by H. L. Premasiri and containing in extent 
Seventeen Acres Two Roods Thirty Perches (17A., 2R., 
30.0P.) according the said Plan No. BD/8990e and registered 
under title X 28/11 at the Land Registry Badulla. 

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

04-541/1

SAMPATH BANK PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011

and No. 19 of 2011

A. M. Rupasinghe and A. M. P. R. Bandara.
A/C No.: 0161 5000 2250.

At a meeting held on 26.11.2020 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously :

Whereas Aththanayake Mudiyanselage Rupasinghe 
and Aththnayake Mudiyanselage Priyadarshana 
Rupasinghe Bandara in the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors and Aththnayake 
Mudiyanselage Priyadarshana Rupasinghe Bandara 
as the Mortgagor have made default in the repayment 
of the credit facilities granted against the security of 
the properties and premises morefully described in the 
Schedules hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the 
Mortgage Bond No. 1305 dated 28th & 29th July, 2015 
attested by K. A. P. Kahandawa, Notary Public of Badulla 
in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office 
at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and 
there is now due and owing on the said Bond bearing  
No. 1305 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 09th 
November, 2020 a sum of Rupees Twenty-six Million 
Three Hundred and Nineteen Thousand One Hundred 
Seventy-seven and Cents Fifteen Only (Rs. 26,319,177.15) 
of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total amount 
outstanding on the said Bond and the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers vested 
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
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Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the properties 
and premises morefully described in the Schedules hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security 
for the said credit facilities by the said Bond bearing  
No. 1305 to be sold in public auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, 
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Twenty-six Million Three Hundred 
and Nineteen Thousand One Hundred Seventy-seven 
and Cents Fifteen Only (Rs. 26,319,177.15) together 
with further interest on a sum of Rupees Twenty-two 
Million Eight Hundred Thousand only (Rs. 22,800,000) 
at the rate of Fifteen per centum (15%) per annum and 
Further interest on further sum of Rupees One Million 
one Hundred and Fifty-two Thousand Sixty-eight and 
Cents Ninety-four Only (Rs. 1,152,068.94) at the rate 
of Fourteen per centum (14%) per annum from 10th 
November, 2020 to date of satisfaction of the total debt 
due upon the said Bond bearing No. 1305 together with 
costs of advertising and other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 1499 dated 01st May, 2011 
made by H. M. S. Unawatuna, Licensed Surveyor of the 
Land called “Galgegawalandehena” together with building 
and soil trees, Plantations and everything standing thereon 
bearing Assessment No. 57, Main Street, Bibile situated 
at Bibile Village within the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Bibile within the Divisional Secretariat Division and the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits  of Bibile in Wegam Pattu Korale 
in the District of Monaragala, Uva Province and which said 
Lot A is bounded on the North by Part of Lot 301 in FVP 573 
land claimed by A. M. K. Abeyratna, on the East by Part of 
Lot 301 in FVP 573 land claimed by D. M. Weththasingha, 
on the South by Lot 302 in FVP 573 Land claimed by H. M. 
Chandrawathie and on the West by Road (Road Development 
Authority) and containing in extent Fourteen Decimal Five 
Five Perches (0A., 0R., 14.55P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 1499 and registered under Volume/ Folio K 98/202 at 
the Land registry Monaragala.

Which said Lot 1 depicted in Plan No.4835 is a resurvey 
of land fully described below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 1011 dated 18th August, 1997 
made by L. K. Gunasekara, Licensed Surveyor of the Land 
called “Galgegawalandehena” together with building and 
soil, trees, Plantations and everything standing thereon 
bearing Assessment No. 57, Main Street, Bibile situated at 
Bibile Village as aforesaid and which said Lot 1 is bounded 
on the North by Part of Lot 301 in FVP 573, on the East 

by Part of Lot 301 in FVP 573, on the South by Lot 302 in 
FVP 573 and on the West by Reservation for Road (from 
Badulla to Bibile) and containing in extent Fifteen Perches 
(0A., 0R., 15P.) according to the said Plan No. 1011 and 
registered under Volume/ Folio K 98/202 at the Land 
registry Monaragala.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. MO-549 dated 24th December, 
2008 made by R. M. S. Bandara, Licensed Surveyor of the 
Land called “Bogahalande - Beligahawatta (part of Lots 
31 & 33 in FVP 573)” together with building and soil, 
trees, Plantations and everything standing thereon situated 
at Bibile Village within the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Rathupasketiya within the Divisional Secretariat Division 
and the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Bibile in Wegam Pattu 
Korale in the District of Monaragala, Uva Province and 
which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Remaining 
portion of the same Land, on the East by Remaining portion 
of the same land, on the South by Reservation for Road 
along Mahiyangana - Badulla Main Road and on the West 
by Land of Gunarathna & Land of D. M. Jayasooriya and 
containing in extent Twenty-five Perches (0A., 0R., 25P.) 
according to the said Plan No. MO-549 and registered under 
Volume/ Folio K 90/216 at the Land registry Monaragala.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

04-541/2

People’s Bank—corporate 
banking Division

Resolution under Section 29D of The People’s 
Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by Act,  

No. 32 of 1986

It is hereby notified that the following resolution was 
unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of the 
People’s Bank under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act, 
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 at 
their meeting held on 26.03.2021.

Whereas Daya Apparel Export (Private) Limited a 
company duly incorporated under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007, bearing Registration No. PV 7580 
and having its Registered Office at No. 362, Colombo 
Road, Pepiliyana, Borelesgamuwa has made default in 
payment due on the Mortgage Bond No. 961 dated 20th 
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September, 2018, attested by D. S. Mahawatta, Notary 
Public of Colombo and Mortgage Bond No. 2687 dated 
21st February, 2017, attested by S. D. N. Premadasa, 
Notary Public of Colombo there is now due and owing 
to the People’s Bank a sum of United States Dollars 
One Million Four Hundred Twenty Thousand and 
Eight Hundred and Twenty-nine and Cents Twenty-six  
(USD 1,420,829.26) together with interest on the said 
Mortgage Bonds.

The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the 
powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 
of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby 
resolve that the property and premises mortgaged to the 
said Bank by aforesaid Mortgage Bond No. 961 dated 20th 
September, 2018, attested by D. S. Mahawatta, Notary 
Public of Colombo and Mortgage Bond No. 2687 dated 
21st February, 2017, attested by S. D. N. Premadasa, Notary 
Public of Colombo morefully described in the schedule hereto 
be sold by Ms. Schokman & Samerawickreme, Licensed 
Auctioneer of No. 6A, Fairfield Gardens, Colombo 08 for 
the recovery of aforesaid sum of United States Dollars One 
Million Four Hundred Twenty Thousand and Eight Hundred 
and Twenty-nine and Cents Twenty-six (USD 1,420,829.26) 
together with further interest at the rate of Eight per centum 
per annum (8.00% p.a.) on a sum of United States Dollars 
Two Hundred Forty-four Thousand and Seven Hundred 
Fifteen and Cents Eighty-one (USD 244,715.81) and Nine 
per centum per annum (9.00% p.a.) on a sum of United States 
Dollars Two Hundred Ten Thousand and Two Hundred and 
Sixty-eight and Cents Forty (USD 210,268.40) and Eight 
point Five per centum per annum (8.50% p.a.) on a sum 
of United States Dollars Eight Hundred Twelve Thousand 
and Four Hundred and Ninety-four (USD 812.494.00) from 
01st February, 2021 up to the date of sale and/or costs and 
moneys recoverable under section (29L) of the said People’s 
Bank Act less payment (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marhed Lot 
3 depicted in Plan No. 57-2006 dated 05.11.2006 made by 
M. C. L. C. Perera, Licensed Surveyor, bearing Assessment 
No. 275, Meeraniya Street situated at Aluthkade East within 
Grama Niladari Division of Aluthkade East and Divisional 
Secretary’s Division of Wella Weediya within the Colombo 
Municipality and in the District of Colombo, Western 
Province, together with buildings, plantations and everything 
standing thereon, and which said Lot 3 is bounded on the 
North by Property of the National Housing Development 

Authority and premises bearing Assessment Nos. 395 and 
399 Sri Sangaraja Mawatha, on the East by Sri Sangaraja 
Mawatha, on the South by Meeraniya Street and on the West 
by Premises bearing Assessment No. 269 Meeraniya Street 
and containing in extent One Acre One Rood and Twelve 
decimal Eight Four Perches (1A., 1R., 12.84P.) according to 
the said Plan No. 57-2006.

Which said Lot 3 in Plan No. 57-2006 is a re-survey of 
the following allotment of land:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3 depicted in Plan No.1742 dated 25.06.1999 made by  
M. T. Rathnayake, Licensed Surveyor, bearing Assessment 
No. 275, Meeraniya Street and No. 387 Sri Sangaraja 
Mawatha situated at Aluthkade East Ward No. 16 and 
Kehelwatte Ward No. 18 within the Colombo Municipality 
and in the District of Colombo, Western Province, together 
with buildings, plantations and everything standing 
thereon, and which said Lot 3 is bounded on the North by 
property of the National Housing Development Authority 
and premises bearing Assessment Nos. 395 and 399 Sri 
Sangaraja Mawatha, East by Sri Sangaraja Mawatha, South 
by Meeraniya Street and on the West by Premises bearing 
Assessment No. 269 Meeraniya Street and premises of 
Mosque and containing in extent one Acre One Rood and 
Twelve decimal Eight Four Perches (1A., 1R., 12.84P.) 
according to the said Plan No. 1742.

Which said Lot 3 in Plan No. 1742 aforesaid is a  
re-survey of the following allotment of land:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot D depicted in Plan No. 3543 dated 14.03.1969 made by  
S. Rajendra, Licensed Surveyor, bearing Assessment  
No. 275 Meeraniya Street and No. 387, Sri Sangaraja 
Mawatha situated at Aluthkade East in Kehelwatte Ward 
within the Colombo Municipality and in the District of 
Colombo, Western Province, together with buildings, 
plantations and everything standing thereon, aforesaid and 
which said Lot 3 is bounded on the North by Premises bearing 
Assessment No. Garden 112, Prince’s Gate and Nos.391 and 
393 Sri Sangaraja Mawatha, on the East by Sri Sangaraja 
Mawatha formerly known as Skinner’s Road North, on 
the South by Meeraniya Street (Formerly known as Ferry 
Street) and on the West by Premises bearing Assessment  
No. 269 Meeraniya Street and 263 Meeraniya Street, 98 
Prince’s Gate and containing in extent One Acre One Rood 
and Eleven decimal Five Six Perches (1A., 1R., 11.56P.) 
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according to the said Plan No. 3543 and registered at the 
Colombo Land Registry under D 39/142.

By Order of Board of Directors,

	 Deputy General Manager (Recoveries).

People’s Bank,
Recoveries Department,
10th Floor, Head Office Building,
No. 75, Sir  Chittampalam A. Gardiner Mw.,
Colombo 02,
05th February, 2021.

04-529

People’s Bank—corporate 
banking Division

Resolution under Section 29D of The People’s 
Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by Act,  

No. 32 of 1986

It is hereby notified that the Following resolution was 
unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of the 
People’s Bank under section 29D of the People’s Bank Act, 
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 at 
their meeting held on 25.02.2021.

Whereas Olympus Construction (Private) Limited a 
company duly incorporated under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007, bearing Registration No. PV 9113 and 
having its Registered Office at No. 362, Colombo Road, 
Pepiliyana, Borelesgamuwa has made default in payment 
due on the Mortgage Bond No. 969 dated 03rd October, 
2018, attested by D. S. Mahawatta, Notary Public of 
Colombo and there is now due and owing to the People’s 
Bank a sum of United States Dollars One Million Six 
Hundred Forty-six Thousand and Two Hundred and 
Seventy-nine and Cents Twenty-nine (USD 1,646,279.29) 
together with interest on said the Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the 
powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 
of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby 
resolve that the machinery and vehicles mortgaged to the 
said Bank by aforesaid Mortgage Bond No. 969 dated 
03rd October, 2018, attested by D. S. Mahawatta, Notary 
Public of Colombo and morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto be sold by Ms. Schokman & Samerawickreme, 

Licensed Auctioneer of No. 6A, Fairfield Gardens, Colombo 
08 For the recovery of aforesaid sum of United States 
Dollars One Million Six Hundred Forty-six Thousand and 
Two Hundred and Seventy-nine and Cents Twenty-nine  
(USD 1,646,279.29) together with Further interest at the 
rate of Eight point Five per centum per annum (8.50% 
p.a.) on a sum of United States Dollars One Million Four 
Hundred and Seventy-eight Thousand and Eight Hundred 
and Sixty and Cents Twenty-eight (USD 1,478,860.28), 
from 01st February, 2021 up to the date of sale and/or costs 
and moneys recoverable under section (29L) of the said 
People’s Bank Act less payment (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All Those machines and Vehicles comprising of;

	 1.	 Concrete yard Machines

	 1.1	 Single Girder Gantry Crane with Cable Drum
		  Country-China, Price USD 34,160, Year -2017

	 1.2	 Double Girder Gantry Crane with 
Cable Drum, Country -China

		  Price- USD 126480 2 Nos,Year -2017

	 1.3	 W. H. Beam Launcher JQ 160T/40M, Total 
Length 66M, Country -China

		  Price- USD 165900, Year -2017

	 1.4	 W. H. Bridge Girder, Transport Vehicle, Qk 
120T30M, Country -China

		  Price- USD 28900, Year -2017

	 2.	 Concrete Batching Plant, with 2 Cement Silos, Water 
Treatment Plant, Loading Vassals, Control Panel and 
Switch Board, Country -China

		  Price- USD 150000,Year -2017 installed at 
Udugammana Giriulla.

	 3.	 Post Tension Machine with 12 Nos. Stressing 
Anchorage M 15A12 Nos. 900, 8 Nos. Stresssing 
Anchorage M 15A8 Nos. 600, Tool Anchor G 15-
12T 3 Nos, Total Anchor G 15 -8T 3Nos, Grouting 
Cap M15-12 10 Nos, Grouting Cap M15-8 10 
Nos., Working Wedge 50Nos, Total Wedge 50 Nos, 
Hydraulic Jack 4 Nos, Pump Nos. 3, Grouting pump, 
Mixture, Round Duct Machine, Round Duct Mould, 
Galvanized Steel Strip, Total Price USD 64354.

	 4.	 Diesel Generator, Model LSC220S3, Price -USD 
19000, Year -2017, Country- China
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	 5.	 Hydraulic Excavator Breakers, 2 Nos,Model TGP 200 
Price -USD 29900 for 2 Nos ,Year -2017

	 6.	 Bobcat 2 Nos. Brand New, Skid steel Loader, Prices 
USD 56560

	 7.	 Backhoe Loader ,Brand New, MODEL Case 851EX 
Price- USD 47667, Year -2017

	 8.	 Crushing and Screening Plant, 200TP Closed Circuit, 
Fully Automatic Jaw Cone Type Crushing and 
Screening Plant with Six Conveyor Belts, UD 327000, 
Country -India Year -2018, the plant is installed with a 
Generator at Malgamuwa, Giriulla.

	I )	 Asoka Leland 10 Wheeler Tippers 10 Nos. Vehicles 
Brand New

	 9.	 Registration No. 	 -	 WP/LN/3465
		  Engine No. 	 -	 HFHZ408299
		  Chassis No. 	 -	 MBIHTLFD3HRET0274
		  Make	 -	 Lanka Asoka Leyland
		  Model	 -	T AURUS 2518

	 10.	 Registration No. 	 -	 WP/LN/3471
		  Engine No. 	 -	 HFHZ408574
		  Chassis No. 	 -	 MBIHTLFD6HRES9359
		  Make	 -	 Lanka Asoka Leyland
		  Model	 -	T AURUS 2518

	 11.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP/LN/3468 
		  Engine No. 	 -	 HFHZ405759
		  Chassis No. 	 -	 MBIHTLFD8HRET0271
		  Make	 -	 Lanka Asoka Leyland
		  Model	 -	T AURUS 2518

	 12.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP/LN/3472 
		  Engine No. 	 -	 HFHZ406748
		  Chassis No. 	 -	 MBIHTLFDXHRFS6676
		  Make	 -	 Lanka Asoka Leyland
		  Model	 -	T AURUS 2518

	 13.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP/LN/3470
		  Engine No. 	 -	 HFHZ407134
		  Chassis No. 	 -	 MBIHTLFDXHRET0188
		  Make 	 -	 Lanka Asoka Leyland
		  Model	 -	T AURUS 2518

	 14.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP/LN/3469
		  Engine No.	 -	 HFHZ405755
		  Chassis No.	 -	 MBIHTLFDXHRES0191
		  Make	 -	 Lanka Asoka Leyland
		  Model	 -	 TAURUS 2518

	 15.	 Registration No. 	 -	 WP/LN/3463
		  Engine No. 	 -	 HFHZ408581
		  Chassis No. 	 -	 MBIHTLFDXHRET0272
		  Make 	 -	 Lanka Asoka Leyland
		  Model	 -	 TAURUS 2518

	 16.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP/LN/3474
		  Engine No.	 -	 HFHZ404467
		  Chassis No	 -	 MBIHTLFD9HRET0084
		  Make	 -	 Lanka Asoka Leyland
		  Model	 -	T AURUS 2518

	 17.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP/LN/3467
		  Engine No.	 -	 HEHZ411767
		  Chassis No	 -	 MBIHTLFDXHRET0627
		  Make	 -	 Lanka Asoka Leyland
		  Model	 -	T AURUS 2518

	 18.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP/LN/3773
		  Engine No.	 -	 HFHZ400107
		  Chassis No	 -	 MBIHTLFDXHRGS2615
		  Make	 -	 Lanka Asoka Leyland
		  Model	 -	T AURUS 2518

	 19.	 Registration No.	 _	 WP CAX-2158
		  Engine No.	 -	 170328W1071204DTA
		  Chassis No	 -	 SALRA2AN5HA014114
		  Make	 -	 Land Rover
		  Model	 -	 Discovery

			II  ) 10 Nos. of Tippers and 01No. of Discovery Land 
Rover:-

	 20.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP LN-5003
		  Engine No.	 -	 E613CDHB 125584
		  Chassis No	 -	 MC2K7ERCOHBO56292
		  Make	 -	 EICHER
		  Model	 -	T ERRA 16

	 21.	 Registration No.	 _	 WP LN-5004
		  Engine No.	 -	 E613CDHB 125125
		  Chassis No	 -	 MC2K7ERCOHBO56219
		  Make	 -	 EICHER
		  Model	 -	T ERRA 16

	 22.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP LN-5005
		  Engine No.	 -	 E613CDHB 125529
		  Chassis No	 -	 MC2K7ERCOHBO56294
		  Make	 -	 EICHER
		  Model	 -	T ERRA 16
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	 23.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP LN-5006
		  Engine No.	 -	 E613CDHB 125432
		  Chassis No	 -	 MC2K7ERCOHBO56295
		  Make	 -	 EICHER
		  Model	 -	T ERRA 16

	 24.	 Registration No. 	 -	 WP LN-5007
		  Engine No. 	 -	 E613CDHB 125596
		  Chassis No. 	 -	 MC2K7ERCOHBO56289
		  Make	 -	 eicher
		  Model	 -	 TERRA 16

	 25.	 Registration No. 	 -	 WP LN-5009
		  Engine No. 	 -	 E613CDHB 125601
		  Chassis No. 	 -	 MC2K7ERCOHBO56290
		  Make	 -	 EICHER
		  Model	 -	T ERRA 16

	 26.	 Registration No. 	 -	 WP LN-5010
		  Engine No. 	 -	 E613CDHB 125619
		  Chassis No 	 -	 MC2K7ERCOHBO56296
		  Make	 -	 EICHER
		  Model	 -	T ERRA 16

	 27.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP LN-5011
		  Engine No. 	 -	 E613CDHB 125552
		  Chassis No 	 -	 MC2K7ERCOHBO56285
		  Make	 -	 EICHER
		  Model	 -	T ERRA 16

	 28.	 Registration No. 	 -	 WP LN-5121
		  Engine No. 	 -	 E613CDGGO99537
		  Chassis No. 	 -	 MC2K1ERCOGGO51516
		  Make	 -	 EICHER
		  Model	 -	T ERRA 16

	 29.	 Registration No.	 -	 WP LN-5122
		  Engine No. 	 -	 E613CDGG099548
		  Chassis No. 	 -	 MC2K1ERCOGGO51515
		  Make	 -	 EICHER
		  Model	 -	T ERRA 16

	 30.	 Engine No. 	 -	 170328W1071204DTA
		  Chassis No. 	 -	 MC2K7ERCOHBO56285
		  Make 	 -	 Land Rover Discovery (Jeep)
		  Model	 -	 SALRA2AN5H

Kept at premises No. 445/2, Colombo Road, Pepiliyana, 
Boralesgamuwa or at such other premises to which 
such machinery may be brought or removed during the 
continuance of these presents. 

By Order of Board of Directors,

	 Deputy General Manager, 	
	 (Recoveries).

People’s Bank,
Recoveries Department,
10th Floor, Head Office Building,
No. 75, Sir Chittampalam A. Gardiner Mw.,
Colombo 02,
03rd February, 2021.

04-528

SAMPATH BANK PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks ( Special Provisions ) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

A. D. I. Wijethunga.
A/C No.: 1114 5396 0703.

At a meeting held on 16.12.2020 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously.

Whereas Athukoralalage Don Indika Wijethunga in 
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facility granted against the security of the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond 
No. 1597 dated 07th August, 2014 attested by C. G. 
Abeywickrama, Notary Public of Colombo in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration 
No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office at No. 110, 
Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and there is 
now due and owing on the said Bond bearing No. 1597 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 10th November, 
2020 a sum of Rupees Six Million Five Hundred and 
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Forty-eight Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-nine 
and Cents Fifty-six Only (Rs. 6,548,329.56) of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security 
for the said credit facility by the said Bond bearing  
No. 1597 to be sold in public auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, 
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Six Million Five Hundred and Forty-
eight Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-nine and Cents 
Fifty-six Only (Rs. 6,548,329.56) together with further 
interest on a sum of Rupees Six Million Two Hundred 
and Seventy-nine Thousand Four Hundred Seventeen 
and Cents Seventy-nine only (Rs. 6,279,417.79) at the 
rate of Twelve Decimal Five per centum (12.5%) per 
annum from 11th November, 2020 to date of satisfaction 
of the total debt due upon the said Bond bearing  
No. 1597 together with costs of advertising and other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotments of land marked 
Lot 37A in Plan No.3598 dated 20th April, 2020 made 
by M. A. Jayaratne, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Kakunagahalanda” together with the buildings, soils, 
trees, plantations and everything standing thereon situated 
at Udahamulla within the Grama Niladari Division of  
No. 525B, Udahamulla West Divisional Secretariat Division 
and the Urban Council Limits of Maharagama in Palle 
Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo Western 
Province and which said Lot 37A is bounded^on the North 
by Lot 38, on the East by Road (20ft. wide), on the South by 
Lot 37B and on the West by Lot 36 and containing in extent 
Six Perches (0A., 0R., 6.0P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 3598 and Registered in Volume Folio A 11/22 and 
Carried over to B 213/49 at the Land Registry Delkanda- 
Nugegoda.

Together with a right of way in over and along Road 
Reservations marked Lots B, C, D and E depicted in Plan 
No.l740A dated 20th January, 1961 made by U. A. L. 
Senaratna, Licensed Surveyor.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

04-527

SAMPATH BANK PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011

and No. 19 of 2011

K. M. S. Thushara.
A/C No.: 0049 5000 3540.

At a meeting held on 16.12.2020 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously :

Whereas Kariyawasam Manage Sumith Thushara in 
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facilities granted against the security of the properties 
and premises morefully described in the Schedules 
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage 
Bond Nos. 1644 dated 09th December, 2013, 1396 dated 
24th August, 2012, 2486 dated 03rd November, 2016 
and 2587 dated 14th March, 2017 all attested by K. L. 
M. D. Kithsiri, Notary Public of Ratnapura in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration  
No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office at No. 110, 
Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and there is now 
due and owing on the said Bond bearing Nos. 1644, 1396, 
2486 and 2587 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 09th 
November, 2020 a sum of Rupees Twenty-one Million 
Six Hundred and Eighty-two Thousand Six Hundred Five 
and Cents Twenty Only (Rs. 21,682,605.20) of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the properties and 
premises morefully described in the Schedules hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security 
for the said credit facilities by the said Bond bearing  
Nos. 1644, 1396, 2486 and 2587 to be sold in public 
auction by K. P. N. Silva, Licensed Auctioneer of 
Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees 
Twenty-one Million Six Hundred and Eighty-two 
Thousand Six Hundred Five and Cents Twenty Only 
(Rs. 21,682,605.20) together with further interest on 
a sum of Rupees Sixteen Million Seven Thousand and 
Four Hundred Twenty-one and Cents Thirteen only  
(Rs. 16,007,421.13) at the rate of Sixteen Decimal Five 
per centum (16.5%) per annum and further interest on 
further sum of Rupees Two Million Six Hundred and 
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Thirty-six Thousand Eight Hundred Three and Cents 
Fifty-five Only (Rs. 2,636,803.55) at the rate of Twenty- 
eight per centum (28%) per annum from 10th November, 
2020 to date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon 
the said Bond bearing Nos. 1644, 1396, 2486 and 2587 
together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

1. All that divided and defined allotments of land marked 
Lot 3 in Plan No.2618 dated 10th March, 2013 (Surveyed 
on 05.3.2013) made by H. L. A. M. Hisham, Licensed 
Surveyor of the land called “Contiguous Lots 1A, IB1, IB3, 
of Lot 01 of Contiguous Land Comprising Lots A & B of 
Beligahawatta alias Koratuwa and Hodihattiya Watta alias 
Gedarawatta of Lots D & E of Kartatambiya Tandalwatta 
alias Karuhandal Thottam” together with the buildings, 
soils, trees, plantations and everything standing thereon 
nearing situated at Weligama Parana Veediya Village within 
the Grama Niladari Division of No. 382A Paranakade 
Divisional Secretariat Division and the Urban Council 
Limits of Weligama in Weligam Korale in the District of 
Matara, Southern Province and which said Lot 3 is bounded 
on the North by Lots 02 and 06 (Road) in Plan No. 2618, on 
the East by Lot 06 in Plan No. 2618 (Road), on the South 
by Lot 04 and 05 in Plan No. 2618 and on the West by Lot 
02 in Plan No. 2618 and containing in extent Ten Decimal 
Five Perches (0A., 0R., 10.5P.) according to the said Plan 
No.2618 and registered under Volume/Folio P 07/130 at the 
Land registry Matara.

Together with the right of way over and along Lot 06 in 
Plan No. 2618 as aforesaid.

(Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond No. 1644).

2. All that divided and defined allotments of land marked 
Lot 1 in Plan No.2063 dated 30th January, 2012 made by 
D. M. Gamage, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Part 
of “Siyabalagahagawa Watta” together with the buildings, 
soils, trees, plantations and everything standing thereon 
situated at Avissawella within the Grama Niladari Division 
of No. 432/B, Seethawaka Divisional Secretariat Division of 
Hanwella and the Municipal Council Limits of Seethawaka 
in Udugaha Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the District of 
Colombo Western Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded 
on the North by Lot 313 wú Part of 12, on the East by Paddy 
Field, on the South by Lot 313 wú Part of 14 and on the West 
by Temple Road and containing in extent One Rood Eleven 
Decimal One Seven Perches (0A., 1R., 11.17P.) according 
to the said Plan No. 2063 and registered under Volume/Folio 
P 232/106 at the Land registry Avissawella.

(Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 1396 and 2486).

3. All that divided and defined allotments of land marked 
Lot 5 in Plan No.2618 dated 10th March, 2013 (Surveyed on 
05.3.2013) made by H. L. A. M. Hisham, Licensed Surveyor 
of the land called “Contiguous Lands Comprising Lots A & B 
Beligahawatta alias Koratuwa alias Hodihattiya Watta alias 
Gedarawatta and Lots D & E of Kartatambiya Tandolwatta 
alias Karuttandal Tottam” together with the buildings, soils, 
trees, plantations and everything standing thereon nearing 
Assessment No. 267, Galle - Matara Road situated at Old 
Street Weligama within the Grama Niladari Division of No. 
382A, Paranakade Divisional Secretariat Division and the 
Urban Council Limits of Weligama in Weligam Korale in 
the District of Matara, Southern Province and which said 
Lot 5 is bounded on the North by Lot 03 in Plan No. 2618, 
on the East by Lot 03 in Plan No.2618 (Road), on the South 
by Main Road from Galle to Matara and on the West by Lot 
04 in Plan No. 2618 and containing in extent Ten Perches  
(0A., 0R., 10P.) according to the said Plan No. 2618 and 
registered under Volume/Folio P 118/125 at the Land 
registry Matara.

(Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond No. 2587).

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

04-526

the  Bank of Ceylon

Notice Under Section 21 of The Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law No. 10 of 1974

At a meeting held on 03.02.2021 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously:

That a sum of  Rs.  30,898,630.14 (Rupees Thirty 
Million Eight Hundred Ninety-eight Thousand 
Six Hundred Thirty and Cents Fourteen Only),  
Rs. 80,336,438.36 (Rupees Eighty Million Three 
Hundred Thirty-six Thousand Four Hundred Thirty-eight 
and Cents Thirty-six Only), Rs. 394,551,498.84 (Rupees 
Three Hundred Ninety-four Million Five Hundred 
Fifty-one Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-eight and 
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Cents Eighty-four Only), Rs. 31,801,601.88 (Rupees Thirty-one Million Eight Hundred One Thousand Six Hundred 
One and Cents Eighty-eight Only) and 18,447,123.29 (Rupees Eighteen Million Four Hundred Forty-seven Thousand 
One Hundred Twenty-three and Cents Twenty-nine Only) are due from Maanuk International (Private) Limited of  
No. 09, Villa Sandalwood, Pallekelle, Kundasale on account of principal and interest outstanding up to 11.01.2021 
on Permanent Overdraft I of Rs. 25,000,000.00 (Rupees Twenty-five Million Only), Permanent Overdraft II of 
Rs.65,000,000.00 (Rupees Sixty Five Million Only), Term Loan I of Rs. 308,000,000.00 (Rupees Three Hundred Eight 
Million Only), Term Loan II of Rs.25,000,000.00 (Rupees Twenty-five Million Only) and Permanent Overdraft III of  
Rs. 15,000,000.00 (Rupees Fifteen Million Only) respectively, together with further interest to be accumulated from 
12.01.2021 on the capital outstanding of the said Permanent Overdraft I of Rs. 25,000,000.00 (Rupees Twenty-five Million 
Only) at the rate of 14.0% (Fourteen) per centum per annum and Permanent Overdraft II of Rs. 65,000,000.00 (Rupees Sixty-
five Million Only) at the rate of 14.0% (Fourteen) per centum per annum and Term Loan I of  Rs. 308,000,000.00 (Rupees Three 
Hundred Eight Million Only) at the rate of 13.0% (Thirteen) per centum per annum and Term Loan II of Rs. 25,000,000.00 
(Rupees Twenty-five Million Only) at the rate of 13.0% (Thirteen) per centum per annum and Permanent Overdraft III of  
Rs. 15,000,000.00 (Rupees Fifteen Million Only) at the rate of 14.0% (Fourteen) per centum per annum till the 
date of payment on Mortgage Bond No. 3308 and Mortgage Bond No 3309 both dated 06.12.2016, Mortgage 
Bond No 3486 dated 14.12.2017, Mortgage Bond No. 3543 dated 12.06.2018, Supplementary Mortgage Bond  
No. 3611, Mortgage Bond No. 3612 both dated 16.10.2018 all attested by D. Weerasooriya, N.P and Mortgage Bond  
No. 4368 dated on 25.02.2019 attested by R.V. Andarawewa, N.P.

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments, Mr. M. H. T. Karunaratne 
of T & H Auctions, No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be authorized and empowered to sell by Public auction the 
property mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and fully described in the Schedules hereunder for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rs. 556,035,292.51 (Rupees Five Hundred Fifty-six Million Thirty-five Thousand Two Hundred Ninety-two and Cents 
Fifty-one Only) due on the said Mortgage Bond Nos. 3308, 3309, 3486, 3543, 3611, 3612 and 4368 together with further 
interest as aforesaid from 12.01.2021 to date of sale, and costs and monies recoverable under Section 26 of the said Bank 
of Ceylon Ordinance and that the Manager, Recovery & Credit Supervision, Metropolitan Branch of the Bank of Ceylon to 
publish notice of this resolution in tenns of Section 21 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

Firstly:

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 8 depicted in Plan No. 6923 dated 08th June, 2008 made by 
D. P. Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land called “Menikwelly Estate” (but registered as “Menikwelly 
Watta”) situated at Delgoda Village within Grama Niladhari Division of Daugalagama and Divisional Secretary’s Division of 
Kalawana in the Pradeshiya Sabha limits of Kalawana in Meda Pattu of Kukulu Korale in Ratnapura District Sabaragamuwa 
Province and which said Lot 8 in bounded on the North by Lots 7 and 6 in Plan No. 1240 dated 22nd December, 1992 made 
by S. Pasqual, Licensed Surveyor, Lot Z and Lot 5, on the East by Lots 5 & 9, on the South by lot 11 and Lot 4 in Plan  
No. 1240 and on the West by Lots 4 & 7 in Plan No. 1240 and Lot Z (but Registered as Lot 2) and containing in extent Two 
Acres Three Roods and Thirty-nine Decimal Five Naught Perches (2A., 3R., 39.50P.) according to the said Plan No. 6923 
and Registered in P 91/06 at the Land Registry, Ratnapura.

Secondly:

All those the Plant and Machinery affixed to the land and premises fully described in the First Schedule above comprising.

List of Machinery

All and singular the immovable machinery and effects of the Obligor consisting of:
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No. Description Model No. Serial
No.

Country of
Origin

1. Single action stranded model Tea roller 
with 20hp
motors and starters.

CCC47 – Local

2. Single action stranded
model Tea roller with 20hp
motors and starters

Gamini 47 – Local

3. Single action Tea roller with
20hp motors and starters

Garnini 47 – Local

4. Reciprocating roll breaker
12x4’ stranded model with
20hp motors and starters

– China

5. Automation of pressure application 
safety device for the 3 set of rollers 
including conveyors

– China

6. 6 feet 3 stage Tea drier with
fire wood furnace, 20hp hot
air fan, capacity 325 Kg per
hour

ccc – Local

7. 6 feet 3 stage Tea drier with
fire wood furnace, 20hp hot
air fan, capacity 350 Kg per
hour

conquest – Indian

8. Electronic Stalk Extractor
with motors and starters

PPJ 3T – Local

9. Middleton sifter complete
with motors and starters

– – Local

10. Michie Sifter complete with
motors and starters

– –
Local

11. Suction winnower with Local

conveyors, motors and –

starter –

12. Chota Sifter with motor and – – Local
starters

13. Rotavan for CTC machine BO-215/lOOO 2RF92020 Local

“TIVANE
14. CTC machine with 5 rollers TK-SNA 1 China

and conveyor belt TK-SNA 2

“GEARBOX” TK-SNA 3

TK-SNA 4

TK-SNA 5
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No. Description Model No. Serial
No.

Country of
Origin

15. Continuous Fermenting BLG-02/2005 – Indian

machine fitted with

conveyors

16. Humidifier line China

17. GEM Tea drier for CTC Standdard/333 GTH/9/151 Indian

section with fire wood – –
furnace, motors and starter

18. Fiber met with motors and – – China

starter

19. Tool room equipment with
01 No. milling machine,
roller chasing lathe machine
01 No. stranded grinder

Local

20. Senvec Tea Colour
Separator with accessories including 
air compressor

R8300W 7300 Japan

21. Colour separator tea clearing machine 
complete with air compressor and 
other standard accessories
Capacity — 350kg per hour

Nanta
8000,9000

– Korea

22. Colour separator tea clearing machine 
complete with air compressor and
other standard accessories
Capacity - 350kg per hour

BTR1000 – Local

23. Colour separator tea
clearing machine complete
with air compressor and
other standard accessories
Capacity - 350kg per hour

Shizuoka S600W Japan

24. 20 No. Withering Trough
72,x6’&2Nos.81,x6’
complete with 2”2”GI
welded mesh and air input
unit complete with motors

– – Local

25. Withering Trough, size
52’x6’ complete with
2”2”GI welded mesh and air
input unit complete with
motors

– – Local

26. Firewood splitter with
motors

– Local



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'04'16

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 16.04.2021
709

No. Description Model No. Serial
No.

Country of
Origin

27. Dust fan – _ Local

28. Generator (Green Power Technology) 500KVA _ Local

29. Weigh bridge – _ Local

30. Generator (Green power technology) 450DFED D960603023 USA

31. Weigh Bridge – – Local

32. Mayer Auto Intelligent
remote mode Tea Colour
separator

6CSX/300TD 6040301201491 China

33. Colour separator Tea
clearing machine complete
with air compressor and
other standard accessories
capacity- 350 kg per hour

BTR1000 – Local

34. Meyer Tea Colour separator
with accessories including
air compressor

4009-002690 6040301201554 China

35. Hydraulic wooden cutter
with 50hp mortar

– – Local

36. Automated conveners
including installation &
resetting

– – –

THE SECOND SCHEDULE

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 9 depicted in Plan No.6923 dated 08th June, 2008 made by 
D.P.Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land called “Menikwelly Estate” (but registered as “Menikwelly 
Watta”) situated at Delgoda Village within Grama Niladhari Division of Daugalagama and Divisional Secretary’s Division of 
Kalawana the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kalawana in Meda Pattu of Kukulu Korale in Ratnapura District Sabaragamuwa 
Province and which said Lot 9 is bounded on the North by Lots 8, 5 and 4 and Lot 14 in Plan No. 1240, on the East by 
Lot 14 & 11 in Plan No. 1240, on the South by Lots 11 & 4 in Plan No. 1240 and Lot 11 and on the West by Lot 4 in Plan  
No. 1240 and Lots 11, 8, 5 (but Registered as Lot 9) & 4 and containing in extent One Acre Two Roods and Two Decimal 
Seven Naught Perches (1A., 2R., 2.70P.) according to the said Plan No. 6923 and registered in P 91/07 at the District Land 
Registry of Ratnapura.
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LIST OF MACHINERY

No. Description Model No. Serial
No.

Country of
Origin

1. Single action standed model
Tea roller with 20HP motors
and starters

Gamini 47” – Local

2. Single Action Tea roller with
motors and starters

Walker 31 – Local

3. Single Action Tea roller with
motors and starters (Used
Machine)

Marshal 31 – Local

4. Single Action Tea roller with
motors and starters

CCC 46 – Local

5. Reciprocating roll breakers
12x4 standard machine with
motors and starters

_ – China

6. Humidifiers complete with motor and 
starters one under repair

China

7. 6ft stage Tea drier, complete with fire 
wood furnace 20 hp hot air fan, ID fan 
& other
motors and starters and other
necessary accessories
Capacity -350Kg per hour

Andre Yule – India

8. Electronic Stalk Extractor
with Motor and starter

PPPJ 3T – Local

9. Fiber Met with motor and
starter

China

10. Suction winnower complete
with	 conveyer,	 motors,
starters

Local

11. Middleton sifter with motor
and starter

– – Local

12. Michie sifter with motor and
starter

– – Local

13. Chota Sifter with motor and
starter

– – Local

14. Tea Cutter – – Local
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No Description Model No. Serial
No.

Country of
Origin

15. Senvec Tea Colour Separator with air 
compressor and other
accessories

C8300W 132806HA9J
ORI

Japan

16. Colour separator Tea clearing machine 
with CD Camera
with air compressor and other standard 
accessories capacity
-350Kg per hour

Nanta7000 OT052020257 Korea

17. Colour separator Tea clearing
machine with air compressor
and other standard accessories
capacity -350Kg per hour

BTR1000 - Local

18. Withering Trough 90’x6’ with
2”x2,: GI welded mesh and air
input unit complete with
motors

-

-

Local

19. Withering Trough 60x6
complete with 2”x2” GI
welded mesh and air input
unit complete with motors

- - Local

20. Firewood splitter 60x6 complete with 
2”x2” GI
welded mesh with air input
unit complete with motors

- - Local

21 Dust Fan - - Local

22 Generator (Genset) 200KVA - Local

Compressor and other standard 
accessories capacity -350Kg Nanta 
9,000

80,009,000 OTA
044525286

Korea

24. Auto intelligent/ remote mode
tea colour separator machine

6CSX-300TD 6040301
201472

China

25. Hydraulic wooden cutter - - Local

and everything else of every sort and description whatsoever now affixed to the land and premises secondly fully described 
in the Second Schedule above.
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THE  THIRD  SCHEDULE

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 (Reservation for Estate Road) depicted in Plan No. 
6923 dated 08th June, 2008 made by D. P. Wimalasena, 
Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land called 
“Menikwelly Estate” (but registered as “Menikwelly Watta) 
situated at Delgoda Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Kalawana in Meda Pattu of Kukulu Korale in 
Ratnapura District Sabaragamuwa Province and which said 
Lot 2 is bounded on the North by Lot 1, on the East by Lot 
14 in Plan No. 1240, on the South by Lot 3 and on the West 
by Estate Road and containing in extent Nineteen Decimal 
Seven Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 19.70P.) according to the 
said Plan No.6923 and registered in P 91/08 at the Land 
Registry, Ratnapura.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 5 (Reservation for Estate Road) depicted in Plan No. 6923 
dated 08th June, 2008 made by D. P. Wimalasena, Licensed 
Surveyor from and out of the land called Menikwelly Estate 
(but registered as Menikwelly Watta) situated at Delgoda 
Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kalawana 
in Meda Pattu of Kukulu Korale in Ratnapura District 
Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Lot 5 is bounded 
on the North by Lot 4, on the East by Lot 9, on the South 
by Lot 8 and on the West by Lot Q and containing in extent 
Twelve Decimal Three Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 12.30P.) 
according to the said Plan No. 6923 and registered in P91/09 
at the Land Registry, Ratnapura.

3. All that divided and defined allotment of land 
marked Lot 6 (Reservation for Estate Road) depicted 
in Plan No. 6923 dated 08th June, 2008 made by D. P. 
Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land 
called “Menikwelly Estate” (but registered as “Menikwelly 
Watta”) situated at Delgoda Village within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Kalawana in Meda Pattu of Kukulu Korale 
in Ratnapura District Sabaragamuwa Province and which 
said Lot 6 is bounded on the North by Lot 3, on the East by 
Lot Q, on the South by Lot 7 and on the West by Estate Road 
and containing in extent Four Decimal Two Nought Perches 
(0A., 0R., 4.20P.) according to the said Plan No. 6923 and 
registered in P 91/10 at the Land Registry, Ratnapura.

4. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot Q (Reservation for Estate Road) depicted in Plan  
No. 6923 dated 08th June, 2008 made by D. P. Wimalasena, 
Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land called 
“Menikwelly Estate” (but registered as “Menikwelly 
Watta”) situated at Delgoda Village within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Kalawana in Meda Pattu of Kukulu Korale 

in Ratnapura District Sabaragamuwa Province and which 
said Lot Q is bounded on the North by Lot X, on the East 
by Lot 5 (but Registered as Lot S), on the South by Lot Z 
and on the West by Lot 6 and containing in extent Nought 
Decimal Nine Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 0.90P.) according 
to the said Plan No. 6923 and Registered in P 91/11 at the 
Land Registry, Ratnapura.

5. All that divided and defined allotment of land 
marked Lot R (Reservation for Estate Road) depicted 
in Plan No. 6923 dated 08th June, 2008 made by D. P. 
Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land 
called “Menikwelly Estate” (but registered as “Menikwelly 
Watta”) situated at Delgoda Village within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Kalawana in Meda Pattu of Kukulu Korale 
in Ratnapura District Sabaragunuwa Province and which 
said Lot R is bounded on the North by Lot Y, on the East 
by Lot 6, on the South by Lot Z and on the West by Lot S 
(but Registered as Lot 5) and containing in extent Naught 
Decimal Nine five Perches (0A., 0R., 0.95P.) according to 
the said Plan no. 6923 and registered in P 91/12 at the Land 
Registry, Ratnapura.

6. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot S (Reservation for Estate Road) depicted in Plan No. 6923 
dated 08th June, 2008 made by D. P. Wimalasena, Licensed 
Surveyor from and out of the land called “Menikwelly 
Estate” (but registered as “Menikwelly Watta”) situated 
at Delgoda Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of 
Kalawana in Meda Pattu of Kukulu Korale in Ratnapura 
District Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Lot S is 
bounded on the North by Estate Road and Lot 6 in Plan  
No. 1240, (but Registered at Estate Road, Lot Y and Lot 
3), on the East by Lot R.(but Registered as Lot 3), on the 
South by Lot 6 in Plan No.1240 and on the West by lot 6 in 
Plan No. 1240 and containing in extent six Decimal Eight 
Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 6.80P.) according to the said Plan 
No. 6923 and Registered in P 91/13 at the Land Registry, 
Ratnapura.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon,

	 Mr.  W. M. H. A. S. S. B. Ekanayake,
	 Manager,
	 (Recovery & Credit Supervision).

Bank of Ceylon, 
Metropolitan Branch,
29th March, 2021.
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